HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003

Committee Agenda
City of Westminster
Title:
Meeting Date:
Time:
Venue:
Members:

Licensing Sub-Committee (4)
Thursday 16th July, 2020
10.00 am
This is a virtual meeting
Councillors:
Karen Scarborough (Chairman)
Louise Hyams
Maggie Carman

This will be a virtual meeting and members of the public are
welcome to view the live broadcast via the links on the
council’s website.

T

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter. If you require
any further information, please contact the Committee Officer,
Kisi Smith-Charlemagne, Senior Committee and Governance
Officer.
Email: kscharlemagne@westminster.gov.uk
Tel: 07817054613
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact
the Director of Law in advance of the meeting please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)
1.

MEMBERSHIP
To report any changes to the membership.

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other
significant interest in matters on this agenda.
Licensing Applications for Determination

1.

ROSSO ITALIANO, 2-3 IRVING STREET, LONDON WC2H 7AT
App

Ward /

Site Name

App

Licensing Ref

No

Cumulative

and

Type

No.
20/00086/LIPV

Impact Area Address
1.

St James’s

Rosso

Premises

Ward /

Italiano

Licence

West End

2-3 Irving

Variation

Cumulative

Street

Impact Area London
WC2H 7AT

(Pages 5 - 78)

2.

WILDE APARTHOTELS BY STAYCITY, PADDINGTON
EXCHANGE, NORTH WHARF ROAD, LONDON, W2 1LF
App

Ward /

No

Cumulative and
Impact

Site Name

App

Licensing Ref

Type

No.

20/03175/LIPN

(Pages 79 - 98)

Address

Area
2.

Hyde Park

Wilde

New

Ward/ Not

Aparthotels

Premises

in

by Staycity

Licence

Cumulative Paddington
Impact

Exchange

Area

North Wharf
Road
London
W2 1LF

3.

5-14 MARBLE ARCH, 12-22 EDGWARE ROAD, 53-63
BRYANSTON STREET AND CUMBERLAND MEWS, LONDON,
W1H
App

Ward /

No

Cumulative and
Impact

Site Name

App

Licensing Ref

Type

No.

20/03127/LIPN

Address

Area
3.

Bryanston

5-14 Marble

New

& Dorset

Arch, 12-22

Premises

Sq Ward/

Edgware

Licence

Edgware

Road, 53-63

Cumulative Bryanston
Impact

Street and

Area

Cumberland
Mews
London
W1H

(Pages 99 130)

Stuart Love
Chief Executive
10 July 2020

In considering applications for premises licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the subcommittee is advised of the following:
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from 7th January 2016.
GUIDANCE CONSIDERATIONS
The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the
Secretary of State under Section 182 the Licensing Act 2003. The most recent version
was published in April 2018.
CORE HOURS WHEN CUSTOMERS ARE PERMITTED TO BE ON THE PREMISES
(As set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2016)
•

For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises:
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30.

•

For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises:
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30.

•

For premises for the provision of other licensable activities:
Friday and Saturday: 09.00 to midnight
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09.00 to midnight
Other Sundays: 09.00 to 22.30
Monday to Thursday: 09.00 to 23.30.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Annex
1
Procedure for virtual hearings held under the Licensing Act 2003
The purpose of this procedure is to clarify how the Licensing Sub-Committee (“the Sub-Committee”)
will conduct virtual licensing hearings made under the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended) and for
licensing applications under other regimes. All hearings are conducted with due regard to the
Council’s Constitution, relevant legislation and case law, regulations and guidance.
Accessing virtual hearings
Virtual Licensing Sub-Committee hearings will be held on Microsoft Teams as a live Teams event.
Each application will be dealt with by a separate Teams meeting. All applicants, responsible
authorities and other persons (who have submitted a valid representation) (collectively called
“Parties”) will be provided with a link to the meeting beforehand. Only these parties will be able to
participate in the hearing (together with their adviser) provided they have registered, in advance,
with the Licensing Authority, as specified below. A link for the general public to watch the meeting
will be available on the Council’s website.
Final Submissions before the Hearing
The parties (or their representatives) should use their best endeavours to ensure that all of their
final submissions have been made so as to be included in the Sub-Committee report (typically no
later, than 5.pm, 5 working days before the Sub-Committee hearing). This means by 5pm on the
Thursday, the week before the Sub-Committee hearing is due to take place. Final submissions should
set out the key points, policies and conditions that a party wishes the Sub-Committee to take
account of in determining the application.
Any final submissions that a party wishes to make, (that have not been submitted so as to have been
included in the report), must be submitted to the Licensing Service by no later than 12 noon 3
working days before the hearing is due to take place. The Licensing email address is:
Licensing@westminster.gov.uk.
Rules during Licensing Hearings
The following rules must be followed by all parties to ensure the virtual hearing can progress as
successfully as possible:
•

•

•
•

All parties wishing to participate in the hearing must register their wish to participate in the
hearing and provide their email addresses to the Licensing Service at
Licensing@westminster.gov.uk no later than 12 noon on the Monday before the
Thursday hearing is scheduled to take place.
All parties should join the virtual hearing at least 15 minutes before the advertised start
time to ensure they are ready to start at the advertised start time. After the advertised start
time has passed no registered parties will be allowed to join, except in exceptional
circumstances, when permitted by the Chairman, as this could disrupt the meeting.
All parties must only address the hearing when invited to do so by the Chairman.
All parties must keep their microphones on mute unless they are speaking. The Chairman
has the ability to mute all parties’ microphones.

page 1

2
•

•
•
•

•

•
•

If a party wishes to interject, they should put their name in the messaging field. The
chairman has the discretion to invite the party to make their comment at an appropriate
stage in the hearing.
All parties are asked to keep their comments as succinct as possible.
If a party has a question for another party, this must be addressed to the Chairman who will
have the discretion to ask the relevant party to respond.
Parties wishing to make suggestions as to the conditions that may be imposed in the event
of the application being granted should do so by reference to the schedule of proposed
conditions set out in the Conditions Schedule annexed to the committee papers. In so
doing, they should use the same numbering in that schedule. This is to ensure that there is
ease of referencing the conditions by all the parties.
To ensure the smooth running of hearings, a time limit will be placed on each party’s
submissions. This time limit must be adhered to but the Chairman has the flexibility to
amend the time limit when it is considered appropriate to do so.
When referring to the hearing papers, participants should give the page and paragraph
number when appropriate.
The Chairman has the discretion to amend these rules in any given case where they
consider it is appropriate to do so.

Procedure
1.

The Chairman will open the meeting and introduce the members of the Sub-Committee and the
other officers attending with the members, including the legal adviser, policy adviser and
committee officer.

2.

The Chairman will confirm the procedure that the hearing will follow.

3.

The Sub-Committee members and officers will be asked to declare any interests they may have
and any other procedural business will be transacted.

4.

The presenting officer from the licensing service will introduce the application, giving a brief
description of the application and introducing all the Parties in attendance for each application

5.

Each party who has registered to speak, will be invited to make their representations and will
be allowed a maximum of 10 minutes each. In order to ensure that the hearing is fair to all
parties and is conducted in an orderly manner, the Chairman has the discretion to extend this
time limit where it is appropriate for the determination of the application.

6.

Parties will normally speak in the following order, (the order may change for other types of
licensing applications):
a. The applicant
b. Responsible authorities
c. Other persons

7.

The Chairman has the right to grant each party the opportunity to ask questions of each other
for the purposes of clarification only where it is appropriate to do so. The Sub-Committee
members will then be able to ask questions of the parties.

page 2

3
8.

The legal adviser and/or policy officer may ask questions of the parties as they consider
appropriate, including in relation to the conditions which should be attached to the application
if the Sub-Committee is minded to grant the application.

9.

Each party will have an opportunity to make a short closing submission each (not introducing
any new evidence or case law) of no more than 5 minutes each, in the following order:
a. Responsible authorities
b. Other persons
c. The applicant

10. The Chairman shall then close the meeting and all parties will leave the meeting. A Decision will
not be announced at the end of the hearing unless there is a legal requirement to do so.
11. The Sub-Committee will deliberate in closed session and all parties will be advised of the
outcome in a written Summary Decision. Unless otherwise required or permitted by
Regulations, summary decisions will be made within a period of five working days of the last
day of the hearing. The written summary of the decision (“Summary Decision”) will be sent to
all the parties as soon as possible after the Decision has been made. The full Decision, setting
out the reasons for the Decision, (Formal Notification) will be sent to the parties as soon as
possible thereafter. The time limit for appealing will not commence until the Formal
Notification has been sent to the parties.
Dated 15 April 2020

page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

City of Westminster

Agenda Item 1
Licensing Sub-Committee
Report

Item No:

Date:
Licensing Ref No:
Title of Report:

Report of:
Wards involved:
Policy context:

Financial summary:

16 July 2020
20/00086/LIPV - Premises Licence Variation
Rosso Italiano
2-3 Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AT
Director of Public Protection and Licensing
St James's
City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy

None

Report Author:

Michelle Steward
Senior Licensing Officer

Contact details

Telephone: 020 7641 6500
Email: msteward1@westminster.gov.uk

page 5

1.

Application

1-A

Applicant and premises

Application Type:

Variation of a Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003

Application received date:
Applicant:
Premises:
Premises address:

5 January 2020
Chahine Brothers Ltd
Rosso Italiano
2-3 Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AT

Premises description:

Variation description:

Applicant submissions:

St James’s

Cumulative
West End
Impact Area:
The premises currently operates as a café offering late night
refreshment and the sale by retail of alcohol. The premises
also has the benefit of Tables and Chairs Licence
20/01640/STTCF and a copy can be seen at Appendix 4.
Planning Permission was granted for the area outside 1 Irving
Street on the 31 March 2020. A Tables and Chairs Licence
has been granted however since the current restrictions were
imposed due to Covid-19, the Licence will commence on the 4
July 2020. The reference for this licence is 20/03266/STTC.
The changes sought by way of this application are as follows:
•
•

Premises licence history:

Ward:

to change the premises trading name to Rosso Italiano.
to submit a revised plan to reflect a change of layout to
the permitted external area by adding the permitted
external area outside number 1 Irving Street to the
existing premises licence for 2-3 Irving Street in order to
join the two areas together
• a change in layout to the basement.
• to remove condition number 10 at annex 1 & condition
number 13 at annex 3.
• to amend the wording of clause h) condition 26 annex 3
to read "when police are called, the cad number shall
be obtained and recorded in the incident book.".
• to add addition conditions as shown at 1-D of the report.
The premises has had the benefit of a Premises Licence since
2005. The current Premises Licence 19/16138/LIPT is
attached at Appendix 3 of this report together with a full
licence history.
There are submissions from the applicant at Appendix 2 of this
report.

page 6

1-B

Current and proposed licensable activities, areas and hours

Regulated Entertainment
Playing of Recorded Music and Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music, or
other entertainment of a like kind for consideration and with a view to profit:

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Seasonal
variations:
Non-standard
timings:

Current
Hours
Start: End:
Unrestricted

Proposed
Hours
Start: End:
Unrestricted

Licensable Area
Current:
Basement,
Ground Floor

Current:
None
Current:
None

Proposed:
No Variation Sought

Proposed:
No Variation Sought
Proposed:
No Variation Sought

Late night refreshment
Indoors, outdoors or both

Current :
Indoors
Proposed
Hours
Start: End:
No Variation
Sought

Proposed:
No Variation Sought
Licensable Area

Current :
Off sales only
Proposed
Hours
Start: End:
No Variation
Sought

Proposed:
No Variation Sought
Licensable Area

Current
Hours
Start: End:
Current:
Proposed:
Monday
23:00 00:30
Basement and
No Variation Sought
Ground Floor
Tuesday
23:00 00:30
Wednesday 23:00 00:30
Thursday
23:00 00:30
Friday
23:00 00:30
Saturday
23:00 00:30
Sunday
23:00 00:00
Seasonal
Current:
Proposed:
variations/
The terminal hour for Late Night
No Variation Sought
Non-standard
Refreshment on New Year’s Eve is
timings:
extended to 05:00 on New Year’s
Day.
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Off Sales Only

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

Current
Hours
Start: End:
10:00 23:00
10:00 23:00
10:00 23:00
10:00 23:00
10:00 23:00

Current:
Basement,
Ground Floor and
external space at
2-3 Irving Street

page 7

Proposed:
Basement, Ground
Floor, external space at
1, 2 and 3 Irving Street.

Saturday
10:00 23:00
Sunday
10:00 23:00
Seasonal
Current:
variations/
Please see condition 13 of the
Non-standard
premises licence as shown at
timings:
Appendix 3 of this report.

On Sales Only

Current :
On Sales Only
Proposed
Hours
Start: End:
No Variation
Sought

Current
Hours
Start: End:
Monday
10:00 00:00
Tuesday
10:00 00:00
Wednesday 10:00 00:00
Thursday
10:00 00:00
Friday
10:00 00:00
Saturday
10:00 00:00
Sunday
10:00 23:30
Seasonal
Current:
variations/
Please see condition 13 of the
Non-standard
premises licence as shown at
timings:
Appendix 3 of this report.

Proposed:
Condition 13 to be removed as part
of this variation. This will remove the
current restrictive hours for Good
Friday and Christmas Day.
Proposed:
No Variation Sought
Licensable Area
Current:
Basement and
Ground Floor
Only

Proposed:
No Variation Sought

Proposed:
Condition 13 to be removed as part
of this variation. This will remove the
current restrictive hours for Good
Friday and Christmas Day.

Hours premises are open to the public
Current
Proposed
Hours
Hours
Start: End: Start: End:
Monday
08:00 00:30 No Variation
Tuesday
08:00 00:30 Sought
Wednesday 08:00 00:30
Thursday
08:00 00:30
Friday
08:00 00:30
Saturday
08:00 00:30
Sunday
08:00 00:00
Seasonal
Current:
variations/
Please see condition 13 of the
Non-standard
premises licence as shown at
timings:
Appendix 3 of this report.
1-C

Premises Area
Current:
Basement,
Ground Floor and
external space at
2-3 Irving Street

Proposed:
Basement, Ground
Floor, external space at
1, 2 and 3 Irving Street.

Proposed:
Condition 13 to be removed as part
of this variation.

Layout alteration

The changes sought to the layout of the premises by way of this variation are as follows:
•
•

reflect a change of layout to the permitted external area by adding the permitted external
area outside number 1 Irving Street to the existing premises licence for 2-3 Irving Street
in order to join the two areas together.
Reconfiguration of the Basement to include the kitchen, 3 WCs and storage area.

page 8

1-D

Conditions being varied, added or removed

Conditions to be removed
10.
No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the
permitted hours unless one of the following applies:
(a)
He is the child of the holder of the premises licence.
(b)
He resides in the premises, but is not employed there.
(c)
He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the premises
which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient means of access or egress.
(d)
The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted and
intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the licence is ancillary.
In this condition "bar" includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the consumption of
intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set apart for the
service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an ancillary to their
table meals.
13.
Alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, consumed in or taken from the premises except
during permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted hours means:
(a)
Monday to Saturday, other than Christmas Day or Good Friday, 10:00 to 00:00 for sale
of alcohol for consumption on the premises and 10:00 to 23:00 for sale of alcohol for
consumption off the premises
(b)
On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10:00 to 23:30 for sale of alcohol for
consumption on the premises and 10:00 to 23:00 for sale of alcohol for consumption off the
premises
(c)
On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30
(d)
On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30
(e)
On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of
permitted hours on the following day for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises.
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit:
(a)
during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on the
premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was supplied for consumption as
ancillary to the meals;
(b)
the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person residing in
the licensed premises;
(c)
the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor
of the alcohol so ordered;
(d)

the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or club;

(e)
the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale
or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised
mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces;
(f)

the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;

(g)
the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a person
residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the consumption of
alcohol by persons so supplied;

page 9

(h)
the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for the
purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the consumption of liquor so
supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or
in charge of the business on the premises.
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed as
including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on the
premises.
Conditions proposed to be added:
1. On a minimum daily basis staff shall check that the CCTV system is operational and the
date & time print correctly set and on a minimum weekly basis staff shall check that
images are being recorded and stored for a minimum of 31 days and can be instantly
downloaded.
2. The dps or a personal licence holder shall be on duty from 19.00 to the end of permitted
licensed hours on Friday and Saturday evenings. At other times the dps, a personal
licence holder or trained member of staff nominated in writing by the dps shall be on
duty until the end of permitted hours.
3. Only trained staff authorised in writing by the dps may sell alcohol. The written authority
will be produced to police or authorised officers on request.
4. Customers using the permitted external area outside number 1 Irving street shall be
permitted to use the toilets at 2/3 Irving street free of charge.

5. The sale and supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be restricted to
alcohol consumed at the outside tables and chairs shown on the licence plan, shall be
by waiter or waitress service, served only to a person seated taking a substantial table
meal there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to their meal. The sale
and supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be restricted to alcohol
consumed by persons who are seated in an area appropriately authorised for the use of
tables and chairs on the highway and bona fide taking a substantial table meal there,
and where the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such a
meal, and where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only.
6. A fire risk assessment & emergency plan will be prepared and regularly reviewed. Staff
will receive appropriate fire safety training & refresher training.
7. Management and staff will proactively monitor the outside of the restaurant including
customer conduct and smokers. Suitable containers will be provided for cigarette ends.
8. A phone number will be displayed for residents and any local residents association to
contact management with any concerns. Details including the outcome will be recorded
in the incident book.
9. Staff will call a cab for departing customers on request.
10. The doors will be kept closed during any musical entertainment except for entry and
egress.
11. A written dispersal policy will be prepared which shall be kept under review. A copy will
be submitted to the licensing authority.
12. A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the

page 10

PASS Hologram.
13. All refusals of service will be recorded in the incident book (refusals section) and will be
made available to the police or authorised officers on request.
14. Notices will be prominently displayed by the entry door and bar stating that both CCTV &
challenge 25 are in operation.
15. Notices will also be displayed advising customers of the provisions of the licensing act
regarding underage & proxy sales.
16. Waiting staff will be trained on induction and given refresher training at six monthly
intervals. Training will include operating the CCTV system, operation of the challenge 25
proof of age scheme, including identifying persons under 25, making a challenge,
acceptable proof of age and checking it, making and recording a refusal plus avoiding
proxy sales, avoiding sales to intoxicated persons, avoiding conflict, responsible alcohol
retailing & safeguarding children.
17. No child or young person under 18 will be permitted to consume alcohol on the premises
at any time.
18. No unaccompanied children will be permitted on the premises after 20.00.
2.

Representations

2-A

Responsible Authorities

Responsible
Authority:
Representative:
Received:

Licensing Authority
Angela Seaward
20 January 2020

I write in relation to the application submitted for a variation of the premises licence, Caffe
Italiano, 2-3 Irving Street, London, WC2H 7AT
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how
the premises would promote the four Licensing Objectives:
•
•
•
•

Public Nuisance
Prevention of Crime & Disorder
Public Safety
Protection of children from harm

The application seeks the following variations:
1. To change the premises trading name to Rosso Italiano,
2. change of plan to regularise and show external seating area which extends from number
1 to number 3 Irving Street and to show the internal layout change,
3. Removal of condition 10 and condition 13
4. Rewording condition 26 from;
• An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to
an authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the
following: (a) all crimes reported to the venue (b) all ejections of patrons (c) any
complaints received concerning crime and disorder (d) any incidents of disorder

page 11

(e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons (f) any faults in the CCTV system
or searching equipment or scanning equipment (g) any refusal of the sale of
alcohol (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
To read as follows;
• When police are called, the cad number shall be obtained and recorded in the
incident book
5. Add additional conditions to the operating schedule as attached to the application.
The application is currently considered under policy HRS1, CIP1 and RNT2
At present, the licensable hours fall within the Westminster's Core Hours Policy HRS1 which
states that "Applications for hours within the core hours set out in the policy will generally be
granted, subject to not being contrary to other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy".
The premises currently operates as a restaurant for on and off sales and is conditioned to be
fully compliant under RNT2, the Licensing Authority also notes following mediation the applicant
has further offered model condition 47 which reads;
•

A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the
premises where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised
photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of
age card with the PASS Hologram.

The premises is situated in the cumulative impact area, CIP1 advises that applications in the
cumulative impact area will be subject to other polices and must demonstrate that they will not
add to cumulative impact in the cumulative impact area.
Therefore it is for the Licensing Sub-committee to determine that the conditions offered by the
applicant are appropriate to support the licensing objectives and that the applicant has
sufficiently demonstrated that they will not impact the cumulative impact area.
Please accept this as a formal representation.
Responsible
Environmental Health Service
Authority:
Representative:
Mr Dave Nevitt
Received:

31 January 2020

I wish to make Representations on the following grounds:
Representation is made in relation to the application, as the proposals are likely to increase the
risk of Public Nuisance.
2-B

Other Persons

Name:
Address and/or Residents Association:

Status:
Received:

Valid
1 February 2020

In support or opposed:

Opposed

1.
This present Application is effectively the same or similar to Application No:
19/08807/LIPN made for a new Premises Licence respect of 1 Irving Street and which
Application was withdrawn/refused on 19 November 2019 at the hearing before the Licensing

page 12

Sub-Committee. For the purpose of this objection I rely upon my original objections as if they
were repeated in this present document in full.
2.
So as to make matters clear what the Applicant is endeavouring to do is to extend the
present premises licence at No 2/3 so as to incorporate the public highway frontage of No 1
Irving Street but without obtaining a premises licence for No 1. Such circumvention should not
be allowed particularly as the No 1 premises is specifically excluded from the proposed licensed
area (edged in red on the plan attached to the Application. In simple terms the exterior seating
areas of Numbers 1 and 2/3 Irving Street will be joined together and the existing use of No 1
Irving Street which is that of a sandwich bar will be totally abandoned as there has been no
indication from the Applicant to the contrary. This will be a sad loss of a useful retail facility in
the area as it would be an odd state of affairs for customers to be consuming sandwiches and
light snacks purchased at No 1 whilst at the same time other customers are being served hot
meals and alcohol from 2/3 Irving Street.
3.
I wish to repeat a number of important aspects of the what may be either continuing
and/or future breaches of planning use of No 1 and 2/3 Irving street and in respect of which the
Applicant has made no reference.
4.
The freeholder of Number 1 and 2/3 Irving Street is Westminster City Council. The
respective leases of 1 and 2/3 Irving Street provide that the respective uses are those of a
sandwich bar and restaurant.
5.
However it is significant that the planning use of 2/3 Irving Street specifically excludes
any primary cooking process which for the purpose of the planning condition shall be taken to
mean the application of heat to raw or fresh food in order to cook the food. To evidence such
use I attach a copy of the planning consent dated 8 May 1997 and which is self-explanatory. As
is evident from the photographs previously produced by me to the Licensing Sub- Committee
and pursuant to the observations carried out at the property and by reference to the menu, hot
food is consistently served by the Applicant to customers of 2/3 Irving Street in breach of the
planning condition. Furthermore there is an illegal extraction system in operation at No 2/3 and
which is creating a nuisance by way of the continual discharge of smoke and smell to the whole
area. The Extraction system should expel smoke etc at rooftop level but in fact the extraction
system has its extractor fitted at approximately 10 feet above ground level and spews out into
Irving Street. If this Application is granted then then this will condone the existing planning
breaches as well as more than doubling the present smoke and smell nuisance as a result of
potentially expanding the overall premises by an additional 32 persons.
6.
There is no existing planning consent for the Public Highway outside No 1 for Tables &
Chairs. The last application for Tables and Chairs licence was refused although there is a
present pending application which is being considered by Westminster and in respect of which 2
substantial objections have been made.
7.
The proposed use of the toilet facilities at No 2/3 by customers using the outside seating
area at No 1 is simply not viable. The toilet facilities will be overloaded and which is health and
safety issue. The stairway down to the toilets at 2/3 is I believe the same stairway used by the
waiting staff to bring food up and down the stairs. There are toilet facilities at Number 1 but the
Applicant has chosen to exclude the Number 1 premises from this Application.
8.
As indicated previously the customers in the outside seating at No 1 will be ordering
food and alcohol to be supplied from Number 2. In reality what is likely to take place is that the
outside area of No 1 will effectively become a virtual public house. As previously noted
customers are likely to congregate outside the confines of the
"outside seating area" as previously used to happen and will spill onto the pavement
and obstruct the Irving Street thoroughfare and which is an important conduit between Leicester
Square and Charing Cross Rd and which ought not to be blocked in anyway.

page 13

9.
It is particularly concerning that alcohol was formerly being sold to customers
congregating outside No 1 (from 2/3 on an uncontrolled basis) and if this present Application is
granted will continue to be sold to the same genre of customers mainly young and possibly
underage customers in and who congregate outside No 1 and generally cause a nuisance by
their unruly and noise behaviour. Shisha (and unfortunately cannabis) is in common use in
particular in the evening and night-time hour and drinking continues past closing time as a result
of "off-sales" made to customers. No enforcement action has to my knowledge been taken by
Westminster to curb these sales previously. It is hoped that Westminster will be taking action to
deal with the continuing and ongoing breaches of planning and public health matters without
being confronted with additional issues in relation to licensing and which will result from the
grant of this Application. The proximity of the JD Wetherspoon premises in Leicester Square
adds to the problems described. The Wetherspoon premises are properly and stringently
policed by door staff who deny access to underage customers and often eject drunken or unruly
customers. and who are immediately attracted to the closest licensed premises and gravitate
ther for their further alcohol consumption and which unfortunately is number 1 Irving Street. The
Applicant does not employ door staff and is happy to accommodate those customers who have
been ejected or refused entry by Wetherspoons.
10.
It is understood that the existing premises Licence for No 2/3 is limited to 30 persons
only. If the present Application is granted then this will increase to close to 100 persons and
hence as the Licensed Premises are situate within the West End Cumulative Impact Area this
will place additional stress upon the area There should be no encouragement for any further
growth in alcohol sales and which will actually lead to serious problems of disorder and/or public
nuisance and in particular will affect residents, pedestrians and other businesses. In particular
and as highlighted above many of the customers who are likely to use the No 1 premises will be
those ejected or excluded from Wetherspoons in Leicester Square some of whom are already
intoxicated or whose behaviour is already questionable and deemed below the policing
standards of existing licensed premisesl
11.
lnsofar as the Applicant's proposed conditions are concerned, I rely upon the comments
I have previously made in relation to the previous Application. In view of the Applicant's
previous history and non-observance of planning consents and breaches of the existing
premises Licence I have no faith in the Applicant being able to comply with the conditions it
proposes.
12.
In such circumstances and for the reasons set out above the present Application
should be refused.
Name:
Address and/or Residents Association:

Status:
Received:

Valid
2 February 2020

In support or opposed:

I have seen a copy of the Notice of Objection sent to you

Opposed

.

I support his objections to the existing Premises Licence being varied by the inclusion of the
exterior frontage of 1 Irving Street (the former Subway Sandwich Bar) and which forms part of
the public highway within the Licenced Area. The former Licence Holder was unlawfully selling
alcohol to customers without any licence in place.
The grant of this aspect of the variation will restore the previous nuisance and which was in
place when there was a Tables & Chairs Consent. Such nuisance has thankfully been almost
entirely eliminated following the refusal of the Planning Authority to renew the Table & Chairs
consent. As a result the previous problems are now almost non-existent.

page 14

The proposed Licence Premises Extension will simply restore the status quo and allow the
previous underage drinking and rowdyism to be reinstated (particularly at weekends) and where
invariably customers are served with alcohol from staff at 2/3 irving Street without food. These
customers then congregate outside 1 Irving Street and at the junction with Leicester Square.
This mainly very young crowd obstruct the thoroughfare and hinder pedestrian traffic and it can
be a fearful experience to walk through this assembly. Cannabis was formerly being smoked
openly and I anticipate will also take place again. There is absolutely no need for further alcohol
sales in an already overcrowded and troublesome area.
As far as toilets are concerned I have no doubt that as previously the lack of sufficient
accessible toilets will lead to some customers urinating in the street.
I also endorse the comments made about the smoke and smell nuisance from 2/3 Irving Street
which continues unabated and is likely to get worse as no steps have been taken to enforce the
planning position and/or to deal with the resiting of the ducting for the extraction system from
the basement kitchens at 2/3.
3.

Policy & Guidance

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply:
Policy HRS1 applies

(i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy.
(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant
policies.
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises:
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the
premises:
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30

Policy CIP1 applies

Policy RNT2 applies

For premises for the provision of other licensable activities:
Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30
Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight
Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30
(i) It is the Licensing Authority’s policy to refuse applications in the
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food premises,
and premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1.
(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must demonstrate
that they will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact
Areas.
Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this

page 15

Statement and subject to the relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1,
PN1 and CH1, provided it can be demonstrated that they will not
add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact Areas.

page 16

4.

Equality Implications
The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of
its functions, have due regard to the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristics and persons who do not share it.
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.

4.

Appendices

Appendix 1

Premises plans

Appendix 2

Applicant supporting documents

Appendix 3

Submissions from Objector 1

Appendix 4

Tables and Chairs Licences and Planning Permissions

Appendix 5

Premises history and current Premises Licence

Appendix 6

Proposed conditions

Appendix 7

Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity

Report author:

Michelle Steward
Senior Licensing Officer
Telephone: 020 7641 1872
Email: msteward1@westminster.gov.uk

Contact:

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background
papers please contact the report author.
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Licensing Act 2003
City of Westminster Statement of Licensing
Policy
Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003
Licensing Authority representation
Environmental Health Service
Representation 1
Representation 2

page 17

N/A
7th January 2016
April 2018
20 January 2020
31 January 2020
1 February 2020
2 February 2020

Premises Plans

Appendix 1

page 18

Applicant Supporting Documents

Appendix 2

There are no submissions from the applicant.

page 19

Submissions from the Objector 1 dated 13 February 2020

Appendix 3

Thank you for your Notice dated 12 February 2020.
I note the hearing date and time of 27 February 2020 @ 10.00am. I hereby give you notice that intend
to be present and to attend the hearing. I may wish to be represented by solicitor or counsel but I have
not yet made a decision to do so in the light of what I set out below.
Please note that on the last occasion I attended a hearing in respect of the previous licence application
and which was withdrawn/dismissed took me more than 15 minutes from arriving at your ground Floor
reception to get to your floor as there was a problem with the lifts and also a lack of a security person
to accompany me. Can you please ask your reception to see if access can be quicker on 27 February. .
You may not be aware that on 10 February 2020 the Applicants Applicant for a Tables & Chairs
Licence was refused. I attach copies of the refusal and the delegated report and you will note that
many of my present similar objections (on this Licence Application) were upheld. Can you please
ensure that copies of these documents are made available to Committee members in advance of the
hearing. I shall be relying on the contents of the Delegated Report. The previous Sub- Committee was
concerned at the lack of a tables & chairs Licence at the last hearing and when a previous application
had been similarly refused on 28 September 2019..
It has also occurred to me in the light of observations made by the Sub Committee at the hearing of the
last Application that you may wish to make an immediate enquiry of the Applicant (or his professional
adviser) to see if he wishes to withdraw the present Application. This will save a great deal of time and
trouble for all concerned.
I look forward to hearing from you. Please email me any additional documents/reports etc that have
been aor may be lodged with you in advance of the hearing in orer that I can consider these documents
together with any lawyer lawyer I appoint (if any).

page 20

page 21

page 22

page 23

page 24

page 25

page 26

page 27

page 28

page 29

page 30

page 31

page 32

page 33

page 34

Tables and Chairs Licence for 2-3 Irving Street

Appendix 4

NOTES

The Council may revoke this licence on certain specified
grounds e.g. for misconduct, failure to comply with licence
conditions.

The holder may employ any other person to ASSIST
him/her in the conduct of the business without any further
licence being required, but the licence may not be
transferred to any other person nor may it be altered or
tampered with in any way. Any failure by an Assistant to
comply with licence conditions will be deemed to be a
failure by the licence holder.

Any breach of this licence is punishable by a penalty not
exceeding Level 3.

CITY OF WESTMINSTER ACT 1999

TEMPORARY LICENCE
FOR THE USE OF
TABLES AND CHAIRS

La Chandelle
2-3 Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AT
LICENCE NO:
20/01640/STTCF

page 35

1.

THE WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL hereby grants to Chahine Brothers ltd

A temporary licence to engage in the use of tables and chairs in the City of Westminster from the street outside La Chandelle, 2-3 Irving Street, London, WC2H 7AT

2.

This licence authorises the holder to trade solely in the articles, and in the manner, and at the places and times specified in the Schedule to the
licence and is granted subject (1) to the conditions made under Section 21(2)(b) of the City of Westminster Act 1999; (2) to any Act amending
the same and to any Orders made thereunder; and (3) to any other statutory enactment which is in force for the time being.

3.

This licence is valid from 27 February 2020 and shall remain in force until 26 August 2020 unless it is cancelled or revoked by the Council.

Ms Simone Murray
Senior Licensing Officer

Dated this: 10 February 2020
On Behalf of the Director of Public Protection & Licensing

SCHEDULE
Number Of Places

26

Type and number of other approved
furniture

TABLES: 13 CHAIRS: 26 HEATERS: NIL PLANTERS: NIL

Location / Premises

La Chandelle, 2-3 Irving Street, London, WC2H 7AT

Dimensions of private forecourt

WIDTH: NONE DEPTH: NONE

Dimensions of area licensed

WIDTH: Use of two areas of the public highway measuring
2.2m x 2.4m and 3.85m x 2.4m DEPTH:

Day

Mon

Tues

Wed

Thurs

Fri

Sat

Sun

From Time

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

To Time

01:00

01:00

01:00

01:00

01:00

01:00

01:00

FURTHER CONDITIONS
(i) No space heaters shall be permitted within the licensed area.

(i) No space heaters shall be permitted within the licensed area.
(ii) The approved furniture shall be removed from the highway each day no later than the
terminal hour stated above and shall not be returned to the
highway until the commencement time on the following day.

page 36

page 37

Planning Permission for 2-3 Irving Street

page 38

page 39

page 40

page 41

page 42

page 43

Table and Chairs Licence for 1 Irving Street

NOTES

The Council may revoke this licence on certain specified
grounds e.g. for misconduct, failure to comply with licence
conditions.

The holder may employ any other person to ASSIST
him/her in the conduct of the business without any further
licence being required, but the licence may not be
transferred to any other person nor may it be altered or
tampered with in any way. Any failure by an Assistant to
comply with licence conditions will be deemed to be a
failure by the licence holder.

Any breach of this licence is punishable by a penalty not
exceeding Level 3.

CITY OF WESTMINSTER ACT 1999

TEMPORARY LICENCE
FOR THE USE OF
TABLES AND CHAIRS

Cafe Italiano
1 Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AT
LICENCE NO:
20/03266/STTC

page 44

1.

THE WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL hereby grants to Chahine Brothers ltd

A temporary licence to engage in the use of tables and chairs in the City of Westminster from the street outside Cafe Italiano, 1 Irving Street, London, WC2H 7AT

2.

This licence authorises the holder to trade solely in the articles, and in the manner, and at the places and times specified in the Schedule to the
licence and is granted subject (1) to the conditions made under Section 21(2)(b) of the City of Westminster Act 1999; (2) to any Act amending
the same and to any Orders made thereunder; and (3) to any other statutory enactment which is in force for the time being.

3.

This licence is valid from 4 July 2020 and shall remain in force until 3 January 2021 unless it is cancelled or revoked by the Council.

Ms Simone Murray
Senior Licensing Officer

Dated this: 30 June 2020
On Behalf of the Director of Public Protection & Licensing

SCHEDULE
Number Of Places

26

Type and number of other approved
furniture

TABLES: 13 CHAIRS: 26 HEATERS: NIL PLANTERS: NIL
FREE STANDING MENU

Location / Premises

Cafe Italiano, 1 Irving Street, London, WC2H 7AT

Dimensions of private forecourt

NONE

Dimensions of area licensed

WIDTH: 9m DEPTH: 3m

Day

Mon

Tues

Wed

Thurs

Fri

Sat

Sun

From Time

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

08:00

To Time

23:00

23:00

23:00

23:00

23:00

23:00

23:00

page 45

FURTHER CONDITIONS
(i) No space heaters shall be permitted within the licensed area.
(ii) The approved furniture shall be removed from the highway each day no later than the terminal hour stated above and shall not be returned to the
highway until the commencement time on the following day.
(iii) The authorised use of the outside area under this permit will only be allowed subject to the availability of public toilets at 2 - 3 Irving Street,
London WC2H 7AT for use by customers using the outside area at 1, Irving Street, London WC2H 7AT.

page 46

page 47

Planning Permission for 1 Irving Street

page 48

page 49

page 50

page 51

page 52

page 53

Premises Licence and History

Appendix 5

Schedule 12
Part A

City of Westminster
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP

Premises licence

Premises licence number:

19/16138/LIPT

Original Reference:

05/10347/LIPC

WARD: St James's
UPRN: 100023431715
Regulation 33, 34

Part 1 – Premises details
Postal address of premises:
Stephanos Cafe La Chandelle
2-3 Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AT
Telephone Number:
Where the licence is time limited, the dates:
Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:
Playing of Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment
Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for consideration
and with a view to profit
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:
Playing of Recorded Music

Unrestricted

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Saturday:
Sunday:

23:00 to 00:30
23:00 to 00:00

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for
consideration and with a view to profit
Unrestricted
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday:
Monday to Saturday:
Sunday:

10:00 to 23:00 (Off Sales)
10:00 to 00:00 (On Sales)
10:00 to 23:30 (On Sales)

For times authorised for Christmas, New Year and Good Friday see conditions at Annex 1&3

page 54

The opening hours of the premises:
Monday to Saturday:
Sunday:

08:00 to 00:30
08:00 to 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off supplies:
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises.

Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises
licence:
Chahine Brothers Ltd
First Floor,
244 Edgware Road,
London W2 1DS
W2 1DS

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
07608688

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises
licence authorises the supply of alcohol:
Name:

Ahmad Chahine

Please note: It is the policy of the Licensing Authority not to display the address details of a
designated premises supervisor.

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:
Licence Number:
Licensing Authority:

Date:

11/10556/LIPERS
City Of Westminster Council

20 December 2019

This licence has been authorised by Mary Pring on behalf of the Director - Public Protection and
Licensing.

page 55

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
1.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in
respect of this licence.

2.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not
hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3.

Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds a
personal licence.

4. (1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises
do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or
contributing to crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children;
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to;
(i)

drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee
to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or
discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as
defined in section 159 of the Act);
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less;
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting
event, where that provision is dependent on;
(i)
(ii)

the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or
the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring;

(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner.
5.

The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the
mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by
reason of a disability).

6.

The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

7.

(1)
The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
(2)

8.

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18
years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a
holographic mark.

The responsible person shall ensure that;

page 56

(a)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance
ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the
following measures;
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(b)

beer or cider: ½ pint;
gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and

customers are made aware of the availability of these measures.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence in
respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged 18 or over
who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor. For premises with a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity that
which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol.
9(i)

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

9(ii)

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 9(i) above (a)

“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b)

“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula P = D+(DxV)
Where (i)
(ii)
(iii)

P is the permitted price,
D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c)

“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence (i)
the holder of the premises licence,
(ii)
the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or
(iii)
the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

(d)

“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a
capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e)

“value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added
Tax Act 1994.

9(iii).

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 9(ii)(b) above would (apart from this paragraph)
not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the
price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

9(iv).

(1)

(2)

Sub-paragraph 9(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph
9(ii)(b) above on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the
next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

page 57

Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the premises by
specified enactment
10.

No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the permitted hours
unless one of the following applies:
(a) He is the child of the holder of the premises licence.
(b) He resides in the premises, but is not employed there.
(c) He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of the premises which is
not a bar and to or from which there is no other convenient means of access or egress.
(d) The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed, fitted and intended to be
used bona fide for any purpose to which the holding of the licence is ancillary.

In this condition "bar" includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the consumption of intoxicating
liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it to be, and it is, set apart for the service of table
meals and alcohol is only sold or supplied to persons as an ancillary to their table meals.
11.

The terminal hour for Late Night Refreshment on New Years Eve is extended to 05:00 on New
Years Day.

page 58

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule

None

page 59

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
12.

Substantial food and suitable beverages other than intoxicating liquor (including drinking water)
shall be available during the whole of the permitted hours in all parts of the premises where
intoxicating liquor is sold or supplied.
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the
premises by specified enactment

13.

Alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, consumed in or taken from the premises except during
permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted hours means:
(a) Monday to Saturday, other than Christmas Day or Good Friday, 10:00 to 00:00 for sale of
alcohol for consumption on the premises and 10:00 to 23:00 for sale of alcohol for
consumption off the premises
(b) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10:00 to 23:30 for sale of alcohol for consumption
on the premises and 10:00 to 23:00 for sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises
(c) On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30
(d) On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30
(e) On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of
permitted hours on the following day for the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises.
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit:
(a) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the alcohol on the
premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol was supplied for consumption as
ancillary to the meals;
(b) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person residing in the
licensed premises;
(c) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by the vendor of
the alcohol so ordered;
(d) the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade or club;
(e) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which the sale or
supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary of State or an authorised
mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or air forces;
(f)

the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;

(g) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends of a person
residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own expense, or the consumption
of alcohol by persons so supplied;
(h) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed there for the
purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence, or the consumption of liquor
so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the expense of their employer or of the person
carrying on or in charge of the business on the premises.
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be construed as
including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of the business on the
premises.

14.

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of
the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

15.

Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of local
residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.

page 60

16.

Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons to
respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.

17.

After 23:00 Patrons temporarily leaving the premises e.g. to smoke shall not be allowed to take
any alcoholic drinks with them.

18.

All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30 minutes
before the scheduled collection times.

19.

No waste of recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or placed in
outside areas between 23:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.

20.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient measures
are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from customers in the
area immediately outside the premises and that this area shall be swept and or washed and litter
and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with the approved refuse storage
arrangements by close of business.

21.

The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (including staff) shall not
exceed 30 persons.

22.

There shall be no striptease or nudity and all persons shall be decently attired at all times, except
when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence.

23.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the minimum
requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be covered
enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system
shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times
when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of
31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.

24.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall
be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be able to
provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the
absolute minimum of delay when requested.

25.

The premises, including any permitted external area, shall only operate as a restaurant
(i) in which customers are shown to their table,
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the premises
and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery,
(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate consumption, save
for consumption at tables and chairs outside the premises granted by a temporary licence under
the City of Westminster Act 1999,
(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by persons who
are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals there, and provided
always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such meals.
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part consumed
and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.

26.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an authorised
officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following: (a) all crimes reported to
the venue (b) all ejections of patrons (c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
(d) any incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons (f) any faults in the
CCTV system or searching equipment or scanning equipment (g) any refusal of the sale of
alcohol (h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

27.

Tables and chairs outside the premises shall be rendered unusable or removed by 23:30.

page 61

Annex 4 – Plans

page 62

page 63

Schedule 12
Part B

City of Westminster
64 Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP

Premises licence
summary

Premises licence number:

WARD: St James's
UPRN: 100023431715
Regulation 33, 34

19/16138/LIPT

Part 1 – Premises details
Postal address of premises:
Stephanos Cafe La Chandelle
2-3 Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AT
Telephone Number:
Where the licence is time limited, the dates:
Not applicable

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:
Playing of Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment
Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for consideration
and with a view to profit
Sale by Retail of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:
Playing of Recorded Music

Unrestricted

Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Saturday:
Sunday:

23:00 to 00:30
23:00 to 00:00

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other entertainment of a like kind for
consideration and with a view to profit
Unrestricted
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday:
Monday to Saturday:
Sunday:
Non-standard Timings: N/A

10:00 to 23:00 (Off Sales)
10:00 to 00:00 (On Sales)
10:00 to 23:30 (On Sales)

For times authorised for Christmas, New Year and Good Friday see conditions at Annex 1&3

page 64

The opening hours of the premises:
Monday to Saturday:
Sunday:

08:00 to 00:30
08:00 to 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol, whether these are on and/or off supplies:
Alcohol is supplied for consumption both on and off the Premises.

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence:
Chahine Brothers Ltd
First Floor,
244 Edgware Road,
London W2 1DS
W2 1DS

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable)
07608688

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of
alcohol:
Name:

Ahmad Chahine

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited:
Restricted

Date:

20 December 2019

This licence has been authorised by Mary Pring on behalf of the Director - Public Protection and
Licensing.

page 65

Licence & Appeal History

Application

Details of Application

Date Determined

Decision

05/10347/LIPC

Conversion of the
Premise Licence
number the Licensing
Act 2003

24 November 2005

Granted under
delegated authority

06/08681/WCCMAP

Master Licence

24 November 2005

Granted under
delegated authority

08/01631/LIPT

Application to transfer
Premises Licence

3 August 2005

Granted under
delegated authority

08/01978/LIPDPS

Application to vary the
Designated Premises
Supervisor

3 August 2005

Granted under
delegated authority

14/00705/LIPV

Application to vary the
Premises Licence

10 April 2014

Granted at Licensing
Sub-Committee

19/02589/LIPDPS

Application to vary the
Designated Premises
Supervisor

1 August 2019

Granted under
delegated authority

19/16138/LIPT

Application to transfer
the Premises Licence

17 December 2019

Granted under
delegated authority

There is no appeal history

page 66

Appendix 6
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING

When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule.
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions,
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or
proposed as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and
have not necessarily been agreed
Conditions: On Current Licence Mandatory:
1.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises
supervisor in respect of this licence.

2.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor
does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3.

Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

4.

(1)

The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the
premises.

(2)

In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a)

games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require
or encourage, individuals to;
(i)

(ii)

(b)

drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

page 67

5.

6.

(c)

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;

(d)

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on,
or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects
of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e)

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a
disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.
(1)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the
sale or supply of alcohol.

(2)

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with
the age verification policy.

(3)

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—
(a)
(b)

7.

a holographic mark, or
an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that—
(a)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available
to customers in the following measures—
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

beer or cider: ½ pint;
gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b)

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material
which is available to customers on the premises; and

(c)

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are
available.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.

page 68

For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol.
8(i)

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

8(ii)

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above (a)

"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act
1979;

(b)

"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D+(DxV)
Where (i)
(ii)
(iii)

(c)

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence (i)
(ii)
(iii)

8(iii).

8(iv).

P is the permitted price,
D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if
the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the
alcohol;

the holder of the premises licence,
the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or
the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

(d)

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply
in question; and

(e)

"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.
(1)

(2)

Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by
Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the
rate of duty or value added tax.
The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

page 69

Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of the
premises by specified enactment
Condition proposed by the applicant to be removed from the operating schedule by way
of this variation:
10.

No person under fourteen shall be in the bar of the licensed premises during the
permitted hours unless one of the following applies:
(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

He is the child of the holder of the premises licence.
He resides in the premises, but is not employed there.
He is in the bar solely for the purpose of passing to or from some part of
the premises which is not a bar and to or from which there is no other
convenient means of access or egress.
The bar is in railway refreshment rooms or other premises constructed,
fitted and intended to be used bona fide for any purpose to which the
holding of the licence is ancillary.

In this condition "bar" includes any place exclusively or mainly used for the
consumption of intoxicating liquor. But an area is not a bar when it is usual for it
to be, and it is, set apart for the service of table meals and alcohol is only sold or
supplied to persons as an ancillary to their table meals.
11.

The terminal hour for Late Night Refreshment on New Years Eve is extended to 05:00
on New Years Day.

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule
None
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
12.

Substantial food and suitable beverages other than intoxicating liquor (including drinking
water) shall be available during the whole of the permitted hours in all parts of the
premises where intoxicating liquor is sold or supplied.
Conditions which reproduce the effect of any restriction imposed on the use of
the premises by specified enactment

Condition proposed by the applicant to be deleted from the operating schedule by way of
this variation:
13.

Alcohol shall not be sold, supplied, consumed in or taken from the premises
except during permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted hours means:
(f) Monday to Saturday, other than Christmas Day or Good Friday, 10:00 to 00:00
for sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises and 10:00 to 23:00 for
sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises
(g) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10:00 to 23:30 for sale of alcohol for
consumption on the premises and 10:00 to 23:00 for sale of alcohol for
consumption off the premises
(h) On Good Friday, 12:00 to 22:30
(i) On Christmas Day, 12:00 to 15:00 and 19:00 to 22:30

page 70

(j) On New Year's Eve from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the
start of permitted hours on the following day for the sale of alcohol for
consumption on the premises.
NOTE - The above restrictions do not prohibit:
(i) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours the consumption of the
alcohol on the premises by persons taking table meals there if the alcohol
was supplied for consumption as ancillary to the meals;
(j) the sale or supply of alcohol to or the consumption of alcohol by any person
residing in the licensed premises;
(k) the ordering of alcohol to be consumed off the premises, or the despatch by
the vendor of the alcohol so ordered;
(l) the sale of alcohol to a trader or registered club for the purposes of the trade
or club;
(m) the sale or supply of alcohol to any canteen or mess, being a canteen in which
the sale or supply of alcohol is carried out under the authority of the Secretary
of State or an authorised mess of members of Her Majesty's naval, military or
air forces;
(n) the taking of alcohol from the premises by a person residing there;
(o) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to any private friends
of a person residing there who are bona fide entertained by him at his own
expense, or the consumption of alcohol by persons so supplied;
(p) the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises to persons employed
there for the purposes of the business carried on by the holder of the licence,
or the consumption of liquor so supplied, if the liquor is supplied at the
expense of their employer or of the person carrying on or in charge of the
business on the premises.
In this condition, any reference to a person residing in the premises shall be
construed as including a person not residing there but carrying on or in charge of
the business on the premises.
14.

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

15.

Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the
needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.
Notices shall be prominently displayed at any area used for smoking requesting patrons
to respect the needs of local residents and use the area quietly.

16.

17.

After 23:00 Patrons temporarily leaving the premises e.g. to smoke shall not be allowed
to take any alcoholic drinks with them.

18.

All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30
minutes before the scheduled collection times.

19.

No waste of recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or
placed in outside areas between 23:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.

page 71

20.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from
customers in the area immediately outside the premises and that this area shall be
swept and or washed and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business.

21.

The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (including staff) shall
not exceed 30 persons.

22.

There shall be no striptease or nudity and all persons shall be decently attired at all
times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual
Entertainment Venue Licence.

23.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer throughout the preceding 31 day period.

24.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

25.

The premises, including any permitted external area, shall only operate as a restaurant
(i) in which customers are shown to their table,
(ii) where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only,
(iii) which provide food in the form of substantial table meals that are prepared on the
premises and are served and consumed at the table using non disposable crockery,
(iv) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink for immediate
consumption, save for consumption at tables and chairs outside the premises granted by
a temporary licence under the City of Westminster Act 1999,
(v) which do not provide any take away service of food or drink after 23.00, and
(vi) where alcohol shall not be sold or supplied, otherwise than for consumption by
persons who are seated in the premises and bona fide taking substantial table meals
there, and provided always that the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary
to taking such meals.
Notwithstanding this condition customers are permitted to take from the premises part
consumed and resealed bottles of wine supplied ancillary to their meal.

26.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police, which will record the following: (a) all
crimes reported to the venue (b) all ejections of patrons (c) any complaints received
concerning crime and disorder (d) any incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or
offensive weapons (f) any faults in the CCTV system or searching equipment or
scanning equipment (g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol (h) any visit by a relevant
authority or emergency service.

27.

Tables and chairs outside the premises shall be rendered unusable or removed by
23:30.

page 72

Conditions proposed by the applicant by way of this variation so as to form part of the
operating schedule:
28.

On a minimum daily basis staff shall check that the CCTV system is operational and the
date & time print correctly set and on a minimum weekly basis staff shall check that
images are being recorded and stored for a minimum of 31 days and can be instantly
downloaded.

29.

The dps or a personal licence holder shall be on duty from 19.00 to the end of permitted
licensed hours on Friday and Saturday evenings. At other times the dps, a personal
licence holder or trained member of staff nominated in writing by the dps shall be on
duty until the end of permitted hours.

30.

Only trained staff authorised in writing by the dps may sell alcohol. The written authority
will be produced to police or authorised officers on request.

31.

Customers using the permitted external area outside number 1 Irving street shall be
permitted to use the toilets at 2/3 Irving street free of charge.

32.

The sale and supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be restricted to
alcohol consumed at the outside tables and chairs shown on the licence plan, shall be
by waiter or waitress service, served only to a person seated taking a substantial table
meal there and for consumption by such a person as ancillary to their meal. The sale
and supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be restricted to alcohol
consumed by persons who are seated in an area appropriately authorised for the use of
tables and chairs on the highway and bona fide taking a substantial table meal there,
and where the consumption of alcohol by such persons is ancillary to taking such a
meal, and where the supply of alcohol is by waiter or waitress service only.

33.

A fire risk assessment & emergency plan will be prepared and regularly reviewed. Staff
will receive appropriate fire safety training & refresher training.

34.

Management and staff will proactively monitor the outside of the restaurant including
customer conduct and smokers. Suitable containers will be provided for cigarette ends.

35.

A phone number will be displayed for residents and any local residents association to
contact management with any concerns. Details including the outcome will be recorded
in the incident book.

36.

Staff will call a cab for departing customers on request.

37.

The doors will be kept closed during any musical entertainment except for entry and
egress.

38.

A written dispersal policy will be prepared which shall be kept under review. A copy will
be submitted to the licensing authority.

39.

A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the
PASS Hologram.

40.

All refusals of service will be recorded in the incident book (refusals section) and will be
made available to the police or authorised officers on request.

page 73

41.

Notices will be prominently displayed by the entry door and bar stating that both CCTV
& challenge 25 are in operation.

42.

Notices will also be displayed advising customers of the provisions of the licensing act
regarding underage & proxy sales.

43.

Waiting staff will be trained on induction and given refresher training at six monthly
intervals. Training will include operating the CCTV system, operation of the challenge
25 proof of age scheme, including identifying persons under 25, making a challenge,
acceptable proof of age and checking it, making and recording a refusal plus avoiding
proxy sales, avoiding sales to intoxicated persons, avoiding conflict, responsible alcohol
retailing & safeguarding children.

44.

No child or young person under 18 will be permitted to consume alcohol on the
premises at any time.

45.

No unaccompanied children will be permitted on the premises after 20.00.

Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health Service
None

page 74

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity

Appendix 7

Resident Count: 16
Licensed Premises within 75 metres of Rosso Italiano, 2-3 Irving Street, London, WC2H
7AT

Licence Number

19/16495/LIPDPS

18/05674/LIPDPS

Trading Name

Address

Premises Type

TGI Fridays

29-30
Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7LA

Not Recorded

Time Period
Monday; 09:00
- 01:30 |
Tuesday;
09:00 - 01:30 |
Wednesday;
09:00 - 01:30 |
Thursday;
09:00 - 01:30 |
Friday; 09:00 01:30 |
Sunday; 09:00
- 01:00 |
Sundays
before Bank
Holidays;
09:00 - 01:30

Global Radio

29-30
Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7LA

Office

Monday to
Friday; 07:00 00:00

page 75

19/04918/LIPVM

18/14488/LIPT

Il Padrino

6-7 Irving
Street
London
WC2H 7AT

Wox

8 Irving
Street
London
WC2H 7AT

18/07437/LIPVM

Moon Under
Water

19/09073/LIPN

Shadow Licence

20/00423/LIPVM

The Lost
Alhambra

17/12395/LIPVM

Not Recorded

28 Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7LE
28A
Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7LE

28A
Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7LE
9A Irving
Street

page 76

Not Recorded

Cafe

Public house or
pub restaurant

Night clubs and
discos

Night clubs and
discos
Cafe

Monday; 10:00
- 05:00 |
Tuesday;
10:00 - 05:00 |
Wednesday;
10:00 - 05:00 |
Thursday;
10:00 - 05:00 |
Friday; 10:00 05:00 |
Sunday; 11:00
- 01:30

Monday to
Saturday;
23:00 - 05:00
Monday to
Thursday;
07:00 - 23:30 |
Friday to
Saturday;
07:00 - 00:00 |
Sunday; 07:00
- 22:50 |
Sundays
before Bank
Holidays;
07:00 - 00:00
Monday to
Saturday;
09:00 - 03:30 |
Sunday; 09:00
- 01:00
Monday; 09:00
- 03:30 |
Monday to
Wednesday;
09:00 - 03:30 |
Tuesday;
09:00 - 03:30 |
Wednesday;
09:00 - 03:30 |
Thursday;
09:00 - 03:30 |
Thursday to
Saturday;
09:00 - 06:00 |
Friday; 09:00 03:30 |
Saturday;
09:00 - 03:30 |
Sunday; 09:00
- 01:00
Monday to
Saturday;

London
WC2H 7AT

06/12648/WCCMAC

10/05756/LIPN

18/14963/LIPDPS

17/09529/LIPN

18/09520/LIPDPS

19/10538/LIPDPS

Restaurant

08:00 - 23:30 |
Sunday; 08:00
- 23:00
Monday to
Friday; 17:30 23:30 |
Monday to
Friday; 13:00 15:00
Monday to
Saturday;
07:00 - 23:30 |
Sunday; 09:00
- 23:00
Monday to
Saturday;
07:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 07:00
- 00:00 |
Christmas Eve;
07:00 - 02:30 |
New Year's
Eve; 07:00 07:00
Monday to
Saturday;
07:00 - 01:00 |
Sunday; 07:00
- 00:00 |
Christmas Eve;
07:00 - 02:30 |
New Year's
Eve; 07:00 07:00
Monday to
Saturday;
09:00 - 01:00 |
Sunday; 09:00
- 00:00 |
Sundays
before Bank
Holidays;
09:00 - 01:00

Restaurant

Monday to
Saturday;
10:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 12:00
- 00:00

Beefsteak Club

Basement
To First
Floor 9
Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AH

Club or
institution

Pompidou

9A Irving
Street
London
WC2H 7AT

Cafe

MOD Pizza

17 - 18
Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AU

Restaurant

Not Recorded

Basement
And Ground
Floor 16
Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AU

Restaurant

Bella Italia

Garfunkels
Restaurants

19/00179/LIPT

The Halal Guys

18/14184/LIPDPS

Wagamama

10 Irving
Street
London
WC2H 7AT
Ground
Floor 19 20 Irving
Street
London
WC2H 7RR
Basement
And Ground
Floor 14-15
Irving Street
London
WC2H 7AU
14A Irving
Street

page 77

Restaurant
Restaurant

Monday to
Saturday;
10:00 - 23:30 |
Sunday; 23:30
- 23:00
Monday to
Saturday;

London
WC2H 7AF

Steak & Co

31-36
Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7LH
17 Charing
Cross Road
London
WC2H 0EP
Ground
Floor 3 - 5
Charing
Cross Road
London
WC2H 0HA

Maharaja Of
India

19A Charing
Cross Road
London
WC2H 0ET

Odeon Cinema

24 - 27
Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7JY

18/09120/LIPDPS

Radisson
Hampshire
Hotel

18/01279/LIPDPS

Saravana
Bhavan

19/01132/LIPVM

16/00395/LIPT

19/11008/LIPVM

19/05778/LIPCH

18/12523/LIPT

15/07167/LIPDPS

Assembly Hotel

24 - 27
Leicester
Square
London
WC2H 7JY
Basement
And Ground
Floor Part
Alhambra
House 27 31 Charing
Cross Road
London
WC2H 0AU

Bella Italia

22 Leicester
Square
London

Odeon Cinema

page 78

10:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 12:00
- 00:00

Hotel, 4+ star or
major chain

Monday to
Sunday; 00:01
- 00:00

Restaurant

Monday to
Sunday; 10:00
- 00:30

Restaurant

Monday to
Saturday;
10:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 12:00
- 00:00
Monday to
Saturday;
10:00 - 23:30 |
Sunday; 12:00
- 23:00

Cinema

Monday to
Sunday; 00:00
- 00:00

Cinema

Monday to
Sunday; 00:00
- 00:00

Restaurant

Hotel, 3 star or
under

Restaurant

Monday to
Thursday;
10:00 - 00:00 |
Friday to
Saturday;
10:00 - 01:00 |
Sunday; 10:00
- 22:30
Monday to
Saturday;
09:00 - 01:00 |
Sunday; 09:00
- 00:00 |
Sundays
before Bank
Holidays;
09:00 - 01:00

City of Westminster

Agenda Item 2
Licensing Sub-Committee
Report

Item No:

Date:
Licensing Ref No:
Title of Report:

Report of:
Wards involved:
Policy context:

Financial summary:

16 July 2020
20/03175/LIPN - New Premises Licence
Wilde Aparthotels by Staycity
Paddington Exchange
North Wharf Road
London
W2 1LF
Director of Public Protection and Licensing
Hyde Park
City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy

None

Report Author:

Kevin Jackaman
Senior Licensing Officer

Contact details

Telephone: 0207 641 6500
Email: kjackaman@westminster.gov.uk

page 79

1.

Application

1-A

Applicant and premises

Application Type:

New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003

Application received date:

25 March 2020

Applicant:

Staycity Uk Limited

Premises:

Wilde Aparthotels by Staycity,

Premises address:

Paddington Exchange
North Wharf Road
London
W2 1LF

Premises description:
Premises licence history:

Applicant submissions:

Ward:

Hyde Park

Cumulative
Impact Area:

None

According to the application form, the application is for an
Aparthotel
This is an application for a new premises licence and therefore
has no licence history.
The applicant operates Aparthotels in London, (notably Staycity
Strand, York, Birmingham, Liverpool, Manchester and
Edinburgh. In addition the applicant Staycity operates other
Aparthotels internationally.
The unit is intended to be licensed at North Wharf Gardens will
offer serviced apartments consisting of studios, one bedroom
and two bedroom apartments..
Each studio / apartment will offer cooking facilities but the
applicant will offer a coffee area which is intended to extend a
limited food and beverage offer.
The application is limited to the provision of licensable activities
of sale of alcohol and late night refreshment.
This application seeks to licence the premises specifically to
authorise under the Licensing Act 2003 the following activities:
1.The sale of alcohol.
2.Recorded music
3.The provision of late night refreshment after 23.00.
It is not anticipated that the proposed development will
adversely affect crime and disorder or public nuisance.
It is believed that the site is not within any cumulative impact
policy area

1-B

Proposed licensable activities and hours

Recorded music
Day:

Mon

Indoors, outdoors or both:
Tues

Indoors

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
10:00
10:00
10:00
End:
23:20
23:20
23:20
Seasonal variations/ NonNone
standard timings:

10:00
23:20

10:00
00:00

10:00
00:00

12:00
22:30

page 80

Late Night Refreshment:
Day:

Mon

Indoors, outdoors or both
Tues

Wed

Thur

Fri

Indoors
Sat

Sun

Start:
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
23:00
End:
23:30
23:30
23:30
23:30
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ Non23:00 on New Year’s Eve to 05:00 on 2nd January
standard timings:
Sale by retail of alcohol
Day:

Mon

On or off sales or both:
Tues

Wed

Thur

Fri

Both
Sat

Sun

Start:
10:00
10:00
10;00
10:00
10:00
10:00
12:00
End:
23:30
23:30
23:30
23:30
00:00
00:00
22:30
Seasonal variations/ NonTo permit the sale of alcohol from 10:00 on New Year’s Eve to
standard timings:
00:30 on 2nd January
Hours premises are open to the public
Day:

Mon

Tues

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonNone
standard timings:
Adult Entertainment:
None

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

2.

Representations

2-A

Responsible Authorities

Responsible
Authority:
Representative:
Received:

Metropolitan Police Service
Reaz Guerra
8 April 2020

With reference to the above application, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police,
as a Responsible Authority, will be objecting to this application as it is our belief that if granted
the application would undermine the Licensing Objectives.
The hours sought exceed Westminsters Core Hour Policy and there is insufficient detail
contained within the operating schedule to promote the licensing objectives.
It is for these reasons that we are objecting to the application
Responsible
Authority:
Representative:

Environmental Health Service

Received:

2 April 2020

Maxwell Koduah,

I refer to the application for a new Premises Licence for the above-mentioned premises. The
premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area. I have considered the
information that you have provided within and accompanying this application. I have also

page 81

considered the proposed variation in line with the relevant policies within the Councils
Statement of Licensing Policy dated January 2016.
The applicant is seeking the following licensable activities:
1.Playing of recorded music “Indoors & Outdoors” at the following times
Monday to Thursday:
10:00 – 23:20 hours
Friday to Saturday
10:00 – 00:00 hours
Sunday
12:00 – 22:30 hours
2. Provision of late-night refreshment “Indoors” at the following times
Monday to Thursday:
23:00 – 23:30 hours
Friday to Saturday
23:00 – 00:00 hours
New Year’s Eve
23:00 - 05:00 hours
3. Supply alcohol for consumption “on” and “off” the premises at the following times:
Monday to Thursday:
10:00 – 23:30 hours
Friday to Saturday
10:00 – 00:00 hours
Sunday
12:00 – 22:30 hours
New Year Eve to 2nd Jan
10:00 – 00:30 hours
24-hour supply of alcohol to residents
Following consideration of the application and how it may affect the Licensing
Objectives and meeting the requirements of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy I
wish to make the following representations:
1. The playing of recorded music and the hours requested to supply alcohol may have the
likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance within the area
2. The provision of late-night refreshment and the hours requested to supply alcohol may
have the likely effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and may affect Public
Safety within the area
3. The supply of alcohol and the hours requested to supply alcohol may have the likely
effect of causing an increase in Public Nuisance and may affect Public Safety within the
area
It is my view that there is insufficient information to address the concerns of Environmental
Health and the granting of this application as presented would have the likely effect of causing
an increase in Public Nuisance and may affect Public Safety within the area
Applicant is asked to contact the undersigned for further discussion and following this, additional
conditions may be recommended by Environmental Health to support the licensing objectives
Prevention of Public Nuisance and Public Safety

2-B

Other Persons

Name:
Address and/or Residents Association:

Received:

20 April 2020

Our comments are made as an Amenity Society recognised by Westminster City Council. We
are officially charged with working towards the preservation and enhancement of the

page 82

architectural and environmental quality of Little Venice, Maida Vale and the Paddington
Waterway area (including planning and licensing issues).
We recognise that these premises are run as a business and we are aware that it has to be a
viable operation, providing services for locals as well as people who are not residents in this
area. We are very keen to ensure that an appropriate balance is maintained between the
legitimate rights of business and the equally legitimate and important rights of residents.
Introduction
With that in mind, this application raises a significant number of issues which lead us to
conclude that, if granted as applied for, it will constitute an unacceptable risk to the licensing
objectives. We would ask that if the licensing authority is minded to grant the application, it
should be with amendments and additional conditions.
Our representation is made on the basis that the likely impact of the application, if granted,
would be to harm the licensing objective of prevention of public nuisance.
The application
We note that the application seeks a new premises licence for a large new development. There
also new and large residential buildings being developed in the vicinity. As such, we are
scrutinising all licence applications in this vicinity. We are aware that there is residential use
planned and are concerned about potential impact on that.
The premises is described as offering ‘serviced apartments
consisting of studios, one bedroom and two bedroom apartments. A location plan accompanies
this application. Each studio / apartment will offer cooking facilities but the applicant will offer a
coffee area which is intended to extend a limited food and beverage offer as identified on the
plans deposited with this application.
The application is limited to the provision of licensable activities of sale of alcohol and late night
refreshment.
This application seeks to licence the premises specifically to authorise under the Licensing Act
2003 the following activities:
1.The sale of alcohol.
2.Recorded music
3.The provision of late night refreshment after 23.00’.
The application seeks provision of licensable activities 24/7 for ‘residents’. However, the
application also seeks provision of licensable activities to members of the public, to 11.30pm
Mon-Thurs, midnight Fri-Sat, 10.30pm Sun. Opening times to the public are not specified.
Whilst some conditions have been proposed, they fall some way short of the safeguards we
would want in order to be content with the application.
Reasons for representation
We have the following concerns at present:
1. The immediate vicinity of the application site has had many new premises licences
granted in recent years. We are concerned that a ‘cumulative impact’ of these premises
is beginning to manifest.
2. The hours for licensable activities and opening are likely to impact adversely on the
licensing objectives.

page 83

3. It seems from the conditions that the proposed style of operation is as a vertical drinking
bar with no requirement to be seated.
4. As the application is for apartments, why is the applicant applying to provide licensable
activities for members of the public at all?
5. And why to as late as ‘core hours’?
6. The conditions talk about ‘hotel bedrooms’, but we were under the impression that the
premises is to be serviced apartments rather than a hotel?
7. The conditions also refer to door staff and dispersal. Is this just a boilerplate error, or is it
because the premises would be a destination venue?
8. We would expect servicing of the premises to be undertaken during sociable hours.
9. We may propose other conditions once we are more fully aware of what the nature of
the operation is.
For these reasons, we object to this licence being granted as presented.
Conclusion
We are aware that applications are often amended to take into account concerns raised by
responsible authorities or other persons. Please let us know if any amendments are made to
this application so that we can consider if they resolve our concerns and, if appropriate, liaise
with local residents.
If a hearing takes place, we will endeavour to attend. Or appoint Richard Brown to represent us.

Name:
Address and/or Residents Association:

Received:

27 April 2020

objects to this Premises Licence
application on the grounds of potential loss of amenity and nuisance (noise etc) and potential
crime & disorder, particularly outside the premises and in the surrounding area which has a
large number of residential units.
We wish understand why premises are wanting to serve food and drink to the general public
and to stay open to WCC 'Core Hours' and kindly request a full explanation. Are the premises
aiming to be a 'destination venue'?
Subject to classification of above, if alcohol is to be sold to public, we would hours reduced and
standard conditions imposed for CCTV, hours of deliveries, hours of refuse & recycling
collections, no alcohol to be taken from outside the premises etc.
We also request condtion requiring persons to be seated with waiter/waitress service with sale
of alcohol to be ancillary to the taking of a substantial meal.

page 84

We also would want a condition that public are 'off the premises' at the end of permitted hours
for the sale of alcohol. (We note that under Section O of application it states premises are open
to public 24 hours a day).
The plans submitted are not that clear on proposed layout of eating & drinking area and we
assume no drinking area outside as could not see any on the plans.
Also we wish to know the location of an outside 'smoking area'.
We also object to the application for 'Off Sales' and we note hours applied for exceed those
normally permitted for in Westminster.
We also note no condition offered restricting sale of 'Off Sales' of beer or cider exceeding 5.5%
APV and would want this condition.
As always,
is more than happy to engage with applicant, and /or their agents, on their
application to more fully understand the application in order to resolve our concerns.
We are content for our contact details to be given to the applicant.

3.

Policy & Guidance

The following policies within the City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply:
Policy HRS1 applies

(i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy.
(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant
policies.
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises:
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30
For premises for the provision of other licensable activities:
Monday to Thursday: 09:00 to 23.30
Friday and Saturday: 09:00 to midnight
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: 09:00 to midnight
Other Sundays: 09:00 to 22:30

Policy PB1 applies

Applications will only be granted if it can be demonstrated that the
proposal meets relevant criteria in Policies CD1, PS1, PN1 and
CH1.

Policy HOT1 applies

Subject to the effect on the promotion of the licensing
objectives and other relevant policies in this Statement,
premises licences for hotels will generally be granted so that:
(a) Alcohol is permitted to be sold at any time to people staying
in hotel rooms for consumption on the premises.

page 85

(b) The hours of serving alcohol to the general public will be
subject to conditions limiting the sale of alcohol after a
specified time to those attending pre-booked events held at the
hotel.
(c) The exhibition of film, in the form of recordings or
nonbroadcast television programmes to be viewed in hotel
bedrooms, will generally be permitted.
4.

Equality Implications
The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to
its public sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In
summary, section 149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of
its functions, have due regard to the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristics and persons who do not share it.
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as
age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.

5.

Appendices

Appendix 1

Premises plans

Appendix 2

Applicant supporting documents

Appendix 3

Premises history

Appendix 4

Proposed conditions

Appendix 5

Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity

Report author:

Kevin Jackaman
Senior Licensing Officer
Telephone: 0207 641 6500
Email: kjackaman@westminster.gov.uk

Contact:

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background
papers please contact the report author.
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972
1

Licensing Act 2003

N/A

2

City of Westminster Statement of Licensing
Policy

page 86

7th January 2016

3
4

Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003
Metropolitan Police Service Representation

5

Environmental Health Service Representation

2 April 2020

6

Interested Party Representation (1)

20 April 2020

7

Interested Party Representation (2)

27 April 2020

page 87

April 2018
8 April 2020

Premises Plans

Appendix 1

page 88

Location Plan

page 89

Applicant Supporting Documents

Appendix 2

None submitted

page 90

Premises History

Appendix 3

There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 91

Appendix 4
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule.
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions,
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and
have not necessarily been agreed
Mandatory Conditions
1.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises
supervisor in respect of this licence.

2.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor
does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3.

Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

4.

(1)

The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the
premises.

(2)

In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a)

games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require
or encourage, individuals to;
(i)

(ii)

drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);

(b)

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c)

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or

page 92

less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;

5.

6.

(d)

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on,
or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects
of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e)

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a
disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.
(1)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the
sale or supply of alcohol.

(2)

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with
the age verification policy.

(3)

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—
(a)
(b)

7.

a holographic mark, or
an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that—
(a)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available
to customers in the following measures—
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

beer or cider: ½ pint;
gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b)

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material
which is available to customers on the premises; and

(c)

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are
available.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol.

page 93

8(i)

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

8(ii)

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above (a)

"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act
1979;

(b)

"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D+(DxV)
Where (i)
(ii)
(iii)

(c)

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence (i)
(ii)
(iii)

8(iii).

8(iv).

P is the permitted price,
D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if
the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the
alcohol;

the holder of the premises licence,
the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or
the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

(d)

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply
in question; and

(e)

"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.
(1)

(2)

Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by
Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the
rate of duty or value added tax.
The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

page 94

Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
9.

The use of door staff will be risk assessed on an ongoing basis by the licence holder of
premises supervisor. Where engaged, door staff shall be licensed by the Security
Industry Authority.

10.

Alcoholic and other drinks may not be removed from the premises save for consumption
in the hotel bedrooms.

11.

Staff will receive training on matters concerning underage sales, drugs policies and
operating procedures to include safety, evacuation and use of emergency equipment as
required.

12.

There shall be a zero tolerance policy in relation to drugs at the premises and there shall
be regular checks by management to prevent the use of drugs by patrons. Drugs seized
shall be stored securely and handed to the police.

13.

The premises shall operate a proof of age scheme and will require photographic
identification from any person who appears to be under the age of 21 years.

14.

The management of the premises will liaise with police on issues of local concern or
disorder.

15.

The premises shall install and maintain a CCTV system as per the minimum
requirements of Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit points will be
covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light condition. The
CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities
and at all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored
for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings
shall be made available immediately upon the proper request of Police or authorised
Officers during the preceding 31-day period.

16.

A staff member who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system shall be on the
premises at all times when the premises is open to non-residents of the hotel. The staff
member must be able to provide a Police or authority Council Officer copies of recent
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when properly requested.

17.

There shall be no striptease or nudity in the public licensed area and all persons shall be
decently attired at all times, except when the premises are operating under the authority
of a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence.

18.

No advertisements of any kind that advertise or promotes the establishment, its
premises or any of its events, facilities, goods or services shall be inscribed or affixed
upon the surface of the highway, upon any building, structure, works, street furniture,
tree or any other property or be distributed to the public.

19.

There shall be no drinks promotions at the premises which are inconsistent with the
need to promote responsible drinking.

20.

There shall be no self-service of alcohol on the premises.

21.

A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record shall include the
date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused the
sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the Police or an
authorised officer of the City Council at all times when the premises are open to nonresidents.

page 95

22.

To comply with the reasonable requirements of the fire officer from time to time.

23.

The premises will have adequate safety and fire fighting equipment, and such equipment
will be maintained in good operational order.

24.

Spillages and breakages will be removed as soon as possible to reduce the risk to
patrons and staff.

25.

Toughened glasses will be used in the premises where appropriate.

26.

Fire Exits and means of escape shall be kept clear and in good operational condition

27.

Where appropriate, prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits
requesting the public respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and
area quietly.

28.

Patrons will be encouraged by staff to leave quietly and respect the interests of the
occupiers of any nearby noise sensitive premises, Where appropriate the licensee or a
suitable staff member will monitor patrons leaving at the closing time

29.

Noise or vibration shall not emanate from the premises so as to cause a nuisance to
nearby properties.

30.

Contact numbers for local taxi firm(s) shall be kept at the premises and made available
to patrons requiring a taxi.

31.

No films or videos of any description will be shown so that they can be viewed by
persons under the age of any applicable BBFC/Local Authority certification.

32.

Children under the age of 16 shall not be permitted to enter the premises after 21:00
unless dining with an adult or attending a pre booked function or resident in the hotel.

33.

There shall be adequate controls in place including staff training to safeguard against the
sale of alcohol to persons under 18 years.

34.

The premises supervisor or appointed staff member shall ensure that when children are
admitted to the premises their presence is not inconsistent with the style of operation of
the premises at that time and the licensable activities that are being carried out.

35.

Policies in relation to children shall be adequately communicated to patrons by staff or
through appropriate signage.

36.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours
of the incident and will record the following:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

all crimes reported to the venue
all ejections of patrons
any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
any incidents of disorder
any faults in the CCTV
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health and agreed by the applicant so
as to form part of the operating schedule
37.

The licensable activities authorised by this licence and provided at the premises shall be
ancillary to the main function of the (premises as serviced apartments / Aparthotel

page 96

38.

After 23:00 hours, the sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be
restricted to residents and up to 4 of their bona fide guests

39.

Food and non-intoxicating beverages, including drinking water, shall be available in all
parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises

40.

All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only

41.

No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or equipment, shall
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of the
premises which gives rise to a nuisance

42.

All windows and external doors in the licensed area shall be kept closed after 21:00
hours, or at any time when regulated entertainment takes place, except for the
immediate access and egress of persons

43.

A direct telephone number for the duty manager at the premises shall be publicly
available at all times the premises is open. This telephone number is to be made
available to residents and businesses in the vicinity

44.

All waste shall be properly presented and placed out for collection no earlier than 30
minutes before the scheduled collection times

45.

No waste or recyclable materials, including bottles, shall be moved, removed from or
placed in outside areas between 21.00 hours and 07.00 hours on the following day

46.

No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall
take place between 21.00 and 07.00 on the following day

47.

No deliveries to the premises shall take place between 21.00 and 07.00 on the following
day

48.

During the hours of operation of the premises, the licence holder shall ensure sufficient
measures are in place to remove and prevent litter or waste arising or accumulating from
customers in the area immediately outside the premises, and that this area shall be
swept and or washed, and litter and sweepings collected and stored in accordance with
the approved refuse storage arrangements by close of business

49.

There shall be no striptease or nudity, and all persons shall be decently attired at all
times, except when the premises are operating under the authority of a Sexual
Entertainment Venue licence.

50.

A Challenge 21 or Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the
PASS Hologram

51.

Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke,
shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.

52.

No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the premises have been
assessed as satisfactory by the Environmental Health Consultation Team at which time
this condition shall be removed from the Licence by the Licensing Authority

Conditions proposed by the Police
None

page 97

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity

Appendix 5

Resident count: 0

Licence premises within 75m of Paddington Exchange, North Wharf Road, London, W2

Licence Number

16/06697/LIPRW

Trading Name

Address

Premises Type

Heist Bank

3 - 15 North
Wharf Road
London W2
1LA

Wine bar

page 98

Time Period
Monday to
Thursday; 08:00 23:30 | Friday to
Saturday; 08:00 00:00 | Sunday;
09:00 - 22:30 |
Sundays before
Bank Holidays;
08:00 - 00:00

City of Westminster

Agenda Item 3
Licensing Sub-Committee
Report

Item No:

Date:
Licensing Ref No:
Title of Report:

Report of:
Wards involved:
Policy context:

Financial summary:

16 July 2020
20/03281/LIPN - New Premises Licence
Odeon Cinema Marble Arch Luxe and Dine, 5-14 Marble
Arch, 12-22 Edgware Road, 53-63 Bryanston Street and
Cumberland Mews
London
Director of Public Protection and Licensing
Bryanston And Dorset Square
City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy

None

Report Author:

Jessica Donovan
Senior Licensing Officer

Contact details

Telephone: 020 7641 6500
Email: Jdonovan@westminster.gov.uk

page 99

1.

Application

1-A

Applicant and premises

Application Type:

New Premises Licence, Licensing Act 2003

Application received date:
Applicant:
Premises:
Premises address:

18 March 2020
Odeon Cinema Ltd
Odeon Cinema Luxe and Dine
5-14 Marble Arch, 12-22
Ward:
Bryanston &
Edgware Road, 53-63
Dorset Square
Bryanston Street and
Cumulative
Edgware
Cumberland Mews
Impact Area:
London
This is an application for a new premises licence which intends
to operate as a cinema
This is a new premises application and therefore no Premises
Licence history exist.
The application follows pre-application advice ref:
19/17147/PREAPM. A copy of this report can be found at
Appendix 2 along with additional information provided by the
applicant following the Licensing Authority’s representation.

Premises description:
Premises licence history:
Applicant submissions:

1-B

Proposed licensable activities and hours

Plays:
Day:

Indoors, outdoors or both
Mon

Tues

Indoors

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

Films
Day:

Indoors, outdoors or both
Mon

Tues

Indoors

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

Live Music
Day:

Indoors, outdoors or both
Mon

Tues

Indoors

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

page 100

Recorded Music
Day:

Mon

Indoors, outdoors or both
Tues

Indoors

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

Performance of Dance
Day:

Mon

Indoors, outdoors or both
Tues

Indoors

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

Anything of a similar description to that
falling within (e), (f) or (g)
Day:
Mon
Tues
Wed
Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:
Late Night Refreshment
Day:

Mon

Indoors, outdoors or both

Indoors

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

Indoors, outdoors or both
Tues

Indoors

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
23:00
23:00
23:00
End:
05:00
05:00
05:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

23:00
05:00

23:00
05:00

23:00
05:00

23:00
05:00

Sale by retail of alcohol
Day:

Mon

On or off sales or both
Tues

On

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

Wed

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Start:
00:00
00:00
00:00
End:
00:00
00:00
00:00
Seasonal variations/ NonN/A
standard timings:

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

00:00
00:00

Hours premises are open to the public
Day:

Mon

Tues

page 101

2.

Representations

2-A

Responsible Authorities

Responsible
Authority:
Representative:
Received:

Environmental Health Service
14 April 2020
Dave Nevitt

I wish to make Representations on the following grounds:
Representation is made in relation to the application, as the proposals are likely to increase the
risk of Public Nuisance and may impact upon Public Safety.
The hours sought for Licensable activities are beyond the 'Core Hours' as defined by the City
Council's Licensing Policy. The premises is located in a Cumulative Impact Area.
Responsible
Authority:
Representative:

Licensing Authority

Received:

15 April 2020

Angela Seaward

I write in relation to the application submitted for a new premises licence for Odeon Cinema 514 Marble Arch, 12-22 Edgware, Bryanston Street, London.
As a responsible authority under section 13 (4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how
the premises would promote the four Licensing Objectives:
•
•
•
•

Public Nuisance
Prevention of Crime & Disorder
Public Safety
Protection of children from harm

The application seeks the following:
• Plays, Films, Live & Recorded Music, Performance of Dance, Anything of a similar
description to e,f or g,
Monday to Sunday 00:00 to 00:00
• Late Night Refreshment
Monday to Sunday 23:00 to 05:00
• Supply of Alcohol On Premises
Monday to Sunday 00:00 to 00:00
• Opening Hours to Public
Monday to Sunday 00:00 to 00:00
The premises is located within the West End Cumulative Impact Area and as such various
policy points must be considered, namely CIP1, HRS1 and PVC2.
At present, the operating hours applied for licensable activities currently fall outside of

page 102

Westminster’s core hours. Paragraph 2.3.2 states that Policy HRS1 is not a policy to refuse
applications for hours longer than the core hours and consideration will in all cases be given to
the individual merits of an application. Where a proposal is made to operate outside these core
hours each application will be considered on its merits against the criteria as set out in
paragraph (ii) that applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this policy will
be considered on their merits, subject to other polices stated within the Westminster licensing
policy.
Supply of Alcohol On the Premises
Monday to Thursday 10:00 to 23:30
Friday to Saturday 10:00 to 00:00
Sunday 12:00 to 22:30
Other Licensable activities
Monday to Thursday 09:00 to 23:30
Friday to Saturday 09:00 to 00:00
Sunday: 09:00 to 22:30
It is the intention to generally grant licences or variations to licences where the hours when
customers are permitted to be on the premises are within the ‘core hours’ as set out in Policy
HRS1, therefore the licensing authority would encourage the applicant too consider reducing
the licensable activities to be within these hours.
The application proposes to operate as a cinema, and therefore the application is considered
under Westminster’s PVC2 Policy. Paragraph 2.5.33 advices that bars are a normal feature of
performances venues but they should be ancillary to the overall use of the premises as a
performance venue. The hours of the operation of the bar will usually be those related to the
times the premises are open for performances and should not extend later than the hours of
performances. Any more general use of these bars in Cumulative Impact Areas will only be
granted as an exception to policy which will have to be argued for on grounds that it will not add
to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact areas and will promote the licensing objectives
and the overall aims of the Statement of Licensing Policy of promoting a variety of non alcohol
led activities
The Licensing Authority notes the proposed conditions within the operating schedule are as
follows;
21. Licensable activities permitted under this licence shall be ancillary to the main
specified function of the premises as a cinema
22. The primary use of the premises shall remain ancillary to the main specified function
of the premises as a cinema.
However as the times applied for the licensable activities are for 24 hours a day, the licensing
authority would encourage the applicant to provide further submissions on the times the
premises intends to operate performances in order to access that there is no extended bar use
that would be contrary to policy PVC2.
The submitted plans also indicate two private hire areas, the applicant is encourage to provide
further submissions with regard to how these areas will be operated. In order for the premises to
comply with the proposed condition above will, the private hire area only be used in conjunction
with the showing of a film? Or is the intension to use these area in connection with the condition
below;
20. No sale of intoxicating liquor shall be made except to:
a) persons admitted to the premises by purchasing a ticket
b) employees and bona fide guests of Odeon Cinema Limited

page 103

c) persons for whom admittance payment has been made.
Furthermore the licensing authority encourage the applicant to provide further submissions on
how the bona fide guests will be operated and controlled also if there is a limit to the number of
guests that will be permitted. In order to fully assess the application, the applicant is encouraged
to explain what part (c) of the condition means, what is the admittance payment, if this is
ancillary to a performance and if this payment is made in advance or at the door at the time of
entry.
Policy PVC2 advices that applications will be granted subject to other policies in this Statement,
provided it is demonstrated that they will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact
Areas.
The licensing authority therefore encourages the applicant to provide further submissions as to
how the premises will not add to cumulative impact in the West End cumulative impact area,
together in accordance with policy CIP1.
I look forward to receiving the applicant further submissions, please accept this email as a
formal representation.
Responsible
Authority:
Representative:

Metropolitan Police Service (Withdrawn 15 April 2020)

Received:

06 April 2020

PC Adam Deweltz

With reference to the above, I am writing to inform you that the Metropolitan Police, as a
Responsible Authority, are making a representation against this application.
The venue is situated within the Cumulative Impact Area. It is our belief that if granted the
application would undermine the Licensing Objectives in relation to The Prevention of Crime
and Disorder.
I look forward to hearing from you.
Following agreement of additional conditions, the Metropolitan Police Service withdrew
their representation on 15 April 2020.

page 104

3.

Policy & Guidance

The following policies within the City Of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy apply:
Policy CIP1 applies

(i) It is the Licensing Authority's policy to refuse applications in the
Cumulative Impact Areas for: pubs and bars, fast food premises,
and premises offering facilities for music and dancing; other than
applications to vary hours within the Core Hours under Policy HRS1.
(ii) Applications for other licensable activities in the Cumulative
Impact Areas will be subject to other policies, and must demonstrate
that they will not add to cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact
Areas.

Policy HRS1 applies

(i) Applications for hours within the core hours set out below in this
policy will generally be granted, subject to not being contrary to
other policies in the Statement of Licensing Policy.
(ii) Applications for hours outside the core hours set out below in this
policy will be considered on their merits, subject to other relevant
policies.
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption on the
premises:
Monday to Thursday: 10:00 to 23:30
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 to midnight
Sundays immediately prior to Bank Holidays: Midday to midnight
Other Sundays: Midday to 22:30
For premises for the supply of alcohol for consumption off the
premises:
Monday to Saturday: 08:00 to 23:00
Sundays: 10:00 to 22:30

Policy PVC2 applies

4.

Applications will be granted subject to other policies in this
Statement, provided it is demonstrated that they will not add to
cumulative impact in the Cumulative Impact Areas.

Equality Implications
The Council in its capacity as Licensing Authority has a duty to have regard to its public
sector equality duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In summary, section
149 provides that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due
regard to the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that
is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristics and persons who do not share it.
Section 149 (7) of the Equality Act 2010 defines the relevant protected characteristics as
age, disability, gender reassignment, Marriages and Civil Partnerships, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation.

page 105

5.

Appendices

Appendix 1

Premises plans

Appendix 2

Applicant supporting documents

Appendix 3

Premises history

Appendix 4

Proposed conditions

Appendix 5

Residential map and list of premises in the vicinity

Report author:

Jessica Donovan
Senior Licensing Officer
Telephone: 020 7641 6500
Email: Jdonovan@westminster.gov.uk

Contact:

If you have any queries about this report or wish to inspect one of the background
papers please contact the report author.
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972
1

Licensing Act 2003

N/A

2

City of Westminster Statement of Licensing
Policy
Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003
Environmental Health Representation
Licensing Authority Representation
Metropolitan Police Representation (Withdrawn 15
April 2020)

7 January 2016

3
4
5
6

page 106

April 2018
14 April 2020
15 April 2020
06 April 2020

Premises Plans

Appendix 1

page 107

page 108

page 109

Applicant Supporting Documents

Appendix 2

Pre-Application Advice report

page 110

page 111

page 112

page 113

page 114

page 115

page 116

Applicant’s response to Licensing Authority’s representation
From:
To: Angela: WCC Seaward; Karyn: WCC Abbott; Licensing: WCC
Subject: Odeon Marble Arch - New premises licence application
Date: 27 April 2020 12:10:26
Dear Angela,
I write with reference to your email of 15th April in connection with the application for a new
premises licence for the proposed Odeon Marble Arch (“OMA”), 5-14 Marble Arch/12-22
Edgware Road, Bryanston Street. I have now had the opportunity to discuss the contents with
my client and I have set out the responses below.
Proposed hours
The applicant proposes a 24 hour offer at the cinema located in the West End. The cinema is
located primarily in an underground site. For the avoidance of doubt it is not intended that the
cinema will operate to the maximum hours each day of the week. The applicant seeks
maximum flexibility given the nature of the entertainment provided. As will be appreciated, the
times that films are presented will vary depending on the film which is being shown. However,
the nature of film offers has significantly changed in a challenging business environment. By
way of example, popular films that enjoy a substantial fan base are released “one minute past
midnight” so that fans can enjoy their favourite movies as soon as possible on the day of
release. A second example is that when a blockbuster is released eg James Bond, Star Wars
etc, there is extremely high demand for tickets and as such cinemas will hold round
the clock, consecutive screenings of the film.
Accordingly, applying for the core hours for licensable activities would not assist the applicant in
being able to provide the full offer that it would like to be able to do for guests. Whilst for the
majority of the time films would not be shown on a “rolling” or “one minute after midnight” basis,
there are many occasions during the year when such flexibility is required.
Policy PCV2
As you have indicated in your email it is the intention of the premises to operate primarily as a
cinema with the sale of alcohol as an ancillary service for guests who visit the site principally to
view a film. Food and drinks will be provided via waiter and waitress service and will be
provided in conjunction with the showing of a film or occasionally if there is a private event eg
when the space is hired for a conference or private screening. The supply of alcohol is therefore
an ancillary feature to the overall use of the premises as a performance venue and will be
related to the times the premises are open for performances and events and will not extend
later than such provision.
Private hire
It is proposed that, in line with the usual offer provided by Odeon Cinemas Limited in other
venues across its estate, facilities will be available for spaces to be hired for use for conference
and meeting events eg for training purposes or team building exercises. These will not always
be linked to the screening of a film but this will usually be the case. If the private hire areas are
hired out for such purposes then payment will be taken in advance in the usual way that
corporate events of this nature are organised. Food or drinks which will be supplied will be part
of a private hire package arrangement and will fall within Condition 20c) ie a person
for whom admittance payment has been made.

page 117

Condition 20
Condition 20 currently operates as a condition on the premises licence for Odeon Leicester
Square which assists operationally to ensure that members of the public cannot purchase
alcohol without purchasing a ticket or without falling into one of the other categories included in
the condition. Given that issues do not arise for the police or any other of the Authorities at that
venue in part due to this condition, it was felt prudent to include the same as part of this
application.
The inclusion of Condition 20 (b) anticipates employees of Odeon attending the cinema who
have the benefit of a concession directly from Odeon Cinemas Limited for them and their guest
to enjoy a film without payment (albeit that they also fall within category 20 (a). Staff must
produce their valid film card for identification purposes and they will then be issued with a ticket.
Tickets cannot be purchased in advance, they can only be obtained on the day of viewing. The
tickets issued have a barcode for staff identification purposes which indicates the category of
person attending ie an employee of Odeon or a guest of an employee. An employee is limited to
12 guests over a three month period, Such concessions are not usually taken up in large
numbers and mostly comprise couples or family members. The numbers involved make up a
very small element of attendance and therefore do not impact the capacity at the venue to any
great extent. The overall numbers permitted would obviously be determined by the capacity at
the premises.
The condition also anticipates a situation where senior management may wish to provide
corporate hospitality at the venue in the form of hosting a meeting or private screening to a
handful of guests. This would happen on an extremely infrequent basis and identification of
those attending would be required by Duty Management before admission would be permitted.
The inclusion of condition 20 (c) anticipates a situation where a couple attend the cinema
together and one has bought the tickets and the other would like to buy a drink for them both ie
admittance has been paid for on behalf of the latter by the former (the latter does not comply
with condition a) because they have not purchased a ticket but they have had one purchased on
their behalf.)
Please note Condition 20 has now been superseded by the agreed Condition 38.
Cumulative impact
The premises intend to operate as a cinema which is a form of entertainment recognised by
Westminster City Council’s (“WCC") Licensing Policy as a form of entertainment which is
unlikely to adversely effect cumulative impact. According to Paragraph 2.5.36 “ The Council
as the Licensing Authority accepts that these types of uses are unlikely to be linked with crime
and disorder and generally have less impact on residents than other licensable activities”. This
is reflected in this application by the withdrawal of the representation to the application by
the police and based on the actual experience of the Odeon Cinemas throughout the country,
including Odeon Leicester Square which is already located in WCC’s cumulative impact area
and which is not a source of concern to the police or to any of the other responsible authorities.
A cinema used to be located on this site again which did not pose any difficulties for the
Authorities. The capacity proposed for this site is 198 plus 10 wheelchair spaces which is a
significantly reduced capacity than the number permitted at the previous cinema which was 982.
Whilst it is recognised that the applicant seeks hours beyond those of core hours it is contended
that the provision of a cinema is a form of entertainment which would not add to cumulative
impact despite this and indeed the nature of the offer, as opposed to a public house or bar etc
being located in the West End, is likely to promote the licensing objectives as recognised by
WCC’s licensing policy at Paragraph 2.5.36 “The situation of these types of uses in the
Cumulative Impact Areas in place of pubs, bars and alcohol led music and dance venues will be
likely to promote the licensing objectives.” Such form of entertainment encourages families and

page 118

all age groups into the area which, like theatres, assists with minimising the impact of alcohol
led venues.
The premises are not alcohol led, the provision of alcohol is an ancillary service for guest of the
cinema, in the same way that it is at the theatre. Only those who have purchased a ticket and
other limited categories of person may purchase alcohol. On average guests purchase one or
two alcoholic drinks and substantial food is available at all times delivered by waiter/waitress
service. The principal purpose for resorting to the premises is to watch a film and not to drink
such as is the case for a destination venue like a pub. Disturbance due to guests being
inebriated would not be tolerated by the applicant and staff are trained extensively to ensure
such does not happen. Importantly too, other guests also would not tolerate such behaviour as
it would disturb enjoyment of the film, so it is essential that the film experience is not interrupted
and staff are accordingly extremely vigilant to maintain the applicant’s reputation as a provider
of top quality film entertainment.
Additionally, a small area on the ground floor of the premises will be used for the collection and
purchase of tickets to include the provision of a Costa Coffee concession. Accordingly, the bar
servery where food and drinks will be delivered to guests by waiter/waitress service will be
located in the lower levels of the building and will therefore not be visible to members of the
public passing the premises which again distinguishes the premises from other venues. The
Costa Coffee concession will not operate beyond 22.00 hours and the ground floor will therefore
only be used for ticket collection/purchase and access beyond this time.
I trust that this has addressed the issues raised in your email but should you have any further
queries please do not hesitate to contact me.
Kind regards
Suzanne Davies
Director
Clifton Davies Consultancy Limited

CONFIDENTIALITY AND DISCLAIMER NOTICE
This email is confidential, may contain information that is privileged and is intended for
the use of the above-named recipient(s) only. If you are not the intended recipient(s), you
are notified that any dissemination of the information contained in this email is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this email in error, do not print, forward or copy it and
please notify us immediately at
or on telephone number
and delete this email from your system. We believe, but do not
warrant, that this email and any attachments are virus free. You take full responsibility for
virus checking. Clifton Davies Consultancy Limited reserves the right to monitor all email
communications through its internal and external networks.
Clifton Davies Consultancy Limited is a limited liability company registered in England
and Wales with registration number 8416729 whose registered address is at 10 Lonsdale
Gardens, Tunbridge Wells, Kent TN11NU
Clifton Davies Consultancy Limited is not a legal practice and is not authorised or
regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority.

page 119

Premises History

Appendix 3

There is no licence or appeal history for the premises.

page 120

Appendix 4
CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WITH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE AND CONDITIONS
PROPOSED BY A PARTY TO THE HEARING
When determining an application for a new premises licence under the provisions of the
Licensing Act 2003, the licensing authority must, unless it decides to reject the application, grant
the licence subject to the conditions which are indicated as mandatory in this schedule.
At a hearing the licensing authority may, in addition, and having regard to any representations
received, grant the licence subject to such conditions which are consistent with the operating
schedule submitted by the applicant as part of their application, or alter or omit these conditions,
or add any new condition to such extent as the licensing authority considers necessary for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.
This schedule lists those conditions which are consistent with the operating schedule, or
proposed as necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives by a responsible authority
or an interested party as indicated. These conditions have not been submitted by the licensing
service but reflect the positions of the applicant, responsible authority or interested party and
have not necessarily been agreed
Mandatory Conditions
1.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when there is no designated premises
supervisor in respect of this licence.

2.

No supply of alcohol may be made at a time when the designated premises supervisor
does not hold a personal licence or the personal licence is suspended.

3.

Every supply of alcohol under this licence must be made or authorised by a person who
holds a personal licence.

4.

(1)

The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the
premises.

(2)

In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a)

games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require
or encourage, individuals to;
(i)

(ii)

drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol
sold or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in
which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or
otherwise);

(b)

provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in
a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c)

provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or

page 121

less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;

5.

6.

(d)

selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on,
or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to
condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects
of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

(e)

dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a
disability).

The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.
(1)

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the
sale or supply of alcohol.

(2)

The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with
the age verification policy.

(3)

The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either—
(a)
(b)

7.

a holographic mark, or
an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that—
(a)

where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up
in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available
to customers in the following measures—
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

beer or cider: ½ pint;
gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b)

these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material
which is available to customers on the premises; and

(c)

where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are
available.

A responsible person in relation to a licensed premises means the holder of the premise licence
in respect of the premises, the designated premises supervisor (if any) or any individual aged
18 or over who is authorised by either the licence holder or designated premises supervisor.
For premises with a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity that which enables him to prevent the supply of alcohol.

page 122

8(i)

A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

8(ii)

For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 8(i) above (a)

"duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act
1979;

(b)

"permitted price" is the price found by applying the formula P = D+(DxV)
Where (i)
(ii)
(iii)

(c)

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence (i)
(ii)
(iii)

8(iii).

8(iv).

the holder of the premises licence,
the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence,
or
the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of
alcohol under such a licence;

(d)

"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply
in question; and

(e)

"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

Where the permitted price given by Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph
shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the
nearest penny.
(1)

(2)

9.

P is the permitted price,
D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if
the value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the
alcohol;

Sub-paragraph 8(iv)(2) below applies where the permitted price given by
Paragraph 8(ii)(b) above on a day ("the first day") would be different from the
permitted price on the next day ("the second day") as a result of a change to the
rate of duty or value added tax.
The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

Admission of children to the premises must be restricted in accordance with the film
classification recommended by the British Board of Film Classification or recommended
by this licensing authority as appropriate.

page 123

Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
10.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as per the
minimum requirements of the Westminster Police Licensing Team. All entry and exit
points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering in any light
condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for
licensable activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping.
Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.

11.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV
system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff
member must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent
CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay when requested.

12.

Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the premises building

13.

Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the
needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area quietly.

14.

The number of persons permitted in the premises at any one time (excluding staff) shall
not exceed (X) persons.

15.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such
as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

16.

A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record should include
the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the member of staff who refused
the sale. The record shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or an
authorised officer of the City Council at all times whilst the premises is open.

17.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on request to an
authorised officer of the City Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours
of the incident and will record the following:
(a) all crimes reported to the venue
(b) all ejections of patrons
(c) any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
(d) any incidents of disorder (e) all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
(f) any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning equipment
(g) any refusal of the sale of alcohol
(h) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

18.

No licensable activities shall take place at the premises until the licensing authority are
satisfied that the premises is constructed or altered in accordance with the appropriate
provisions of the District Surveyor’s Association – Technical Standards for Places of
Entertainment and the reasonable requirements of Westminster Environmental Health
Consultation Team, at which time this condition shall be removed from the licence by the
licensing authority.

19.

Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to smoke,
shall not be permitted to take drinks or glass containers with them.

page 124

20.

The approved arrangements at the premises, including means of escape provisions,
emergency warning equipment, the electrical installation and mechanical equipment,
shall at all material times be maintained in good condition and full working order.

21.

The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free
of trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the
plans provided.

22.

All emergency exit doors shall be available at all material times without the use of a key,
code, card or similar means.

23.

All emergency doors shall be maintained effectively self closing and not held open other
than by an approved device.

24.

The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be
conspicuous.

25.

Curtains and hangings shall be arranged so as not to obstruct emergency safety signs
or emergency equipment.

26.

All fabrics, curtains, drapes and similar features including materials used in finishing and
furnishing shall be either non-combustible or be durably or inherently flame-retarded
fabric. Any fabrics used in escape routes (other than foyers), entertainment areas or
function rooms, shall be non-combustible.

27.

There shall be no licensable activities permitted on the ground floor of the premises.

28.

Licensable activities permitted under this licence shall be ancillary to the main specified
function of the premises as a cinema.

29.

The primary use of the premises shall remain as a cinema otherwise the licence shall
cease to have effect.

30.

Substantial food and non-intoxicating beverages, including water, shall be available in all
parts of the premises where alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises
when alcohol is available for sale.

31.

Waiter/waitress service shall be available at all times that the premises are open to the
public.

32.

There shall be no sales of food or hot drink for consumption off the premises after 22.00.

33.

There shall be no off sales of alcohol.

34.

The premises licence holder shall operate a radio scheme at the premises.

35.

No unaccompanied children under the age of 12 years to be admitted to film
performances commencing after 20.00 hours.

36.

No unaccompanied children under the age of 15 years to be admitted to film
performances commencing after 22.00 hours.

Conditions proposed by the Environmental Health and agreed with the applicant so as to
form part of the operating schedule
37.

The retail outlet on the ground floor level shall close no later than 22.00 on Mondays to
Sundays.

page 125

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority and agreed with the applicant so as to
form part of the operating schedule
38. The sale of alcohol shall only be to:
(a) Persons who have purchased or who have been given a ticket to view the showing of
a screened event or performance at the premises on that day or who are attending a
private, pre-booked event to which members of the public are not admitted. A register of
persons attending a private, pre-booked event shall be kept at the premises and made
available for immediate inspection by police or an authorised officer of the Council.
(b) Employees & bona fide guests of Odeon Cinemas Limited.
Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority
39.

On not more than 12 occasions per year films may be exhibited between the hours of
03:00 and 09:00 hours. On those occasions at least ten working days notice shall be
given to the City Council's Environmental Health Consultation Team and the Borough
Police Licensing Unit.

Conditions proposed by the Police and agreed with the applicant so as to form part of
the operating schedule
40.

The SIA security requirement will be risk assessed and signed off by a senior member of
the management on a weekly basis or as necessary. A written record will be kept and
shall be provided to the Responsible Authorities upon request.

page 126

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity

Resident Count: 93

page 127

Appendix 5

Licensed premises within 75 Metres of 5-14 Marble Arch, 12-22 Edgware Road, 53-63
Bryanston Street and Cumberland Mews, London
Licence Number

Trading Name

20/02443/LIPN

Not Recorded

Address
Development
Site At 5-9
Marble Arch, 220 (evens)
Edgware Road
& 53-59 (odd)
Bryanston
Street London
Development
Site At 5-9
Marble Arch, 220 (evens)
Edgware Road
& 53-59 (odd)
Bryanston
Street London
Development
Site At 5-9
Marble Arch, 220 (evens)
Edgware Road
& 53-59 (odd)
Bryanston
Street London
Development
Site At 5-9
Marble Arch, 220 (evens)
Edgware Road
& 53-59 (odd)
Bryanston
Street London
Development
Site At 5-9
Marble Arch, 220 (evens)
Edgware Road
& 53-59 (odd)
Bryanston
Street London
Marble Arch
Tower 55
Bryanston
Street London
W1H 7AA

18/03367/LIPST

RU5, Marble
Arch Place

18/03368/LIPST

RU6, Marble
Arch Place

14/05500/LIPDPS

Sainsbury's

7 - 9 Marble
Arch London

Shop

Monday to
Sunday; 07:00
- 23:00
Monday to
Saturday;
08:00 - 23:00 |
Sunday; 10:00
- 22:30

16/09835/LIPT

The Tyburn

The Tyburn 20

Public house or

Monday to

18/03362/LIPST

RU2, Marble
Arch Place

18/03364/LIPST

RU3, Marble
Arch Place

18/03365/LIPST

RU4, Marble
Arch Place

page 128

Premises Type

Cafe

Not Recorded

Restaurant

Cafe

Restaurant

Shop (very
large)

Time Period
Monday to
Thursday;
08:00 - 00:00 |
Friday to
Saturday;
08:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 08:00
- 23:00
Monday to
Thursday;
08:00 - 00:00 |
Friday to
Saturday;
08:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 08:00
- 23:00

Monday to
Saturday;
08:00 - 00:00 |
Sunday; 08:00
- 23:00
Monday to
Thursday;
08:00 - 00:00 |
Friday to
Saturday;
08:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 10:00
- 22:30
Monday to
Thursday;
08:00 - 00:00 |
Friday to
Saturday;
08:00 - 00:30 |
Sunday; 08:00
- 23:00

Edgware Road
London W2 2EN

19/13112/LIPDPS

Prezzo

7 - 9 Great
Cumberland
Place London
W1H 7LU

15/06410/LIPDPS

Spaghetti
House

47-51 Bryanston
Street London
W1H 7DN

18/02536/LIPDPS

Spaghetti
House

pub restaurant

Restaurant

Restaurant

16/12791/LIPT

Arch Food &
Wine

47-51 Bryanston
Street London
W1H 7DN
1A Great
Cumberland
Place London
W1H 7AL

20/03272/LIPV

Cumberland
Food &
Wine

11 Great
Cumberland
Place London
W1H 7LU

Shop

Marble Arch
Theatre

Western Traffic
Island Marble
Arch London
W1H 7DX

Theatre

17/05472/LIPN

page 129

Restaurant

Shop

Thursday;
07:00 - 23:30 |
Friday to
Saturday;
07:00 - 00:00 |
Sunday; 07:00
- 22:50 |
Sundays
before Bank
Holidays;
07:00 - 00:00
Monday to
Sunday; 12:00
- 00:00
Monday to
Saturday;
10:00 - 23:30 |
Sunday; 12:00
- 23:00
Monday to
Saturday;
10:00 - 23:30 |
Sunday; 12:00
- 23:00
Monday to
Sunday; 07:00
- 01:00
Monday; 08:00
- 05:00 |
Tuesday;
08:00 - 05:00 |
Wednesday;
08:00 - 05:00 |
Thursday;
08:00 - 05:00 |
Friday; 08:00 05:00 |
Saturday;
08:00 - 05:00 |
Sunday; 08:00
- 05:00
Monday to
Saturday;
12:00 - 23:30 |
Sunday; 12:00
- 23:00

This page is intentionally left blank

